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INDEFENDENT AUDITORS® REFORT
TO THE SHAREAOLDERS OF SALAMA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDT JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

Ly pinn o

We have mudited the financial statements of Salama Cooperative Insurance Company (the “Company™), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the related statement of ncome,
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and potez to the financial statements, including o summary of signmificant saccounnng policies.

In our opition, the accompanying financial statements present faely, m all material respects, the imancial posiion
of the Company as of 31 December 2019, and itz financial performanee and ite cash flows for the vear then ended
in accondance with Intemational Financial Reporing Standards (“IFRSs") as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi
Ambia and other standards and proncuncements issued by Saud) Organization for Certified Public Accountants
(*S0OCPA™) (collectively referred 1o as “IFRS as endorsed in KSA™).

Basis for i ol

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standarde on Auditing (“ISAs™) that are endorsed in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Our responsibiliies under those standards are further described in the Awditors’
Responsibilines for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordapce with the profeéssional code of conduct and ethics, that are endorsed in the Kinpdom of
sawdi Arabin, that are relevant to our audit of the financial stateimenss, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilifies in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the andst evidence we have obtamed is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Eev Andit Matters

Key awdit matters are those marters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the cument period Theee matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial satements as a whole, and in forming our opinion therson, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, a description of how our andit addressed the matter is provided in that
CONEx:;
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INDEFENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT (continued)

u MOORE

El Sayad El Ayouty & Co
Certad Putiic Acoountards

TO THE SHAREAOLDERS OF SALAMA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDT JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

Kev Audit Aatters {continued)

Kev Andil Matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matiers

Valuation of ultimate claim liabilities arising from
insurance contracts

As at 31 December 2019, outstanding claims including
claims Incumed but Mot Reported (IBNR) amounted o
Sandi Rivals 169,539 thousands as disclosed in Note 7
and 13 1o the financial stateiments,

The estimation of ultimate insurance contract liabilities
involves a significant degree of udgment. The liabilities
are based on the best-estimate of ultimate cost of all
clams incurred but not seftled at a given date, whether
reported or nof, together with the related claims handling
costs,

In particular, estimates of IBNR and the use of actuarial
slafistical projections involve sigoificant judgment. A
range of methods e.g. Chain |adder method, Romhuetter
ferguson method. expected loss rano method etc. are used
by the actuary to determine these provisions. Underlymng
these methods are s number of explicit or implicit
assumptions relating to the expected settlement amoumnt
and settlement patterns of claims.

We considered this as a key audit matter since use of
management sssumptions &nd pdgments counld result in
marerial  overstatement ¢ understatement  of  the
Company®s profitability and the ultimate liakdlity,

The Company's policies for claims and related judgments
and estimztes are disclosed in notes 2 and 3 to the
financial  statements respectively. Liabilities for
outstanding clams inchding TBNE, claims incurred and
clams development table have been disclosed in note 7
and 13 to the finaocial statements. Sepment wise
disclosure of claim related liabilities and expense have
been given in note Xl to the finaocial statemenis. The
Company’s approach o claim relsted risk management
has been disclosed m note 29 to the financial statements,

k3

We understood and evaluated key controls mround the
claims handling and provision setting processes of the
Company including completeness and accumcy of claims
ikata vsed in he scnprial reserving process,

We evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectvity
of the management’s expert by examining their
professionnl qualifications and experiences and assessing
their relationship with the enfity.

In obiaining sufficient audit evidence 1o assess the integnity
of data used as inpurs nfe the acmarial valuations, we
tested oo sample basis, the completeness and accuracy of
inderlymg clains deta wilized by the Company™s acuary
in estimating the IBNR by comparing it to the accounting
recards.

In order to challenge managemesnt’s methodologies and
assumptions, we were assisted by our internal actary to
understand and evaluate the Company’s actuarial practices
and the provisions established. In order to gain comfort
over the actuanal report issued by management’s expert,
our internal actuary performed the following;

Evaluated whether the Company’s achiarial
methodologies were consistent with those used in the
ndustry and with prior periods. 'We sought sufficient
justification for sny significant differences.

Assessed key actuanal assumptions incliding clamms
ratios, and expected frequency and severity of claims.
We challenged these assamptions by comparing them
with our expectations based on the Company's
historical expenience, curent frends and our own
industry knowledge.

Reviewed the appropriateness of the calculstion
methods and approach along with the sssumptions
msed and sensitivities to the key assmnphions.
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INDEFENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT (continued)
TO THE SHAREAOLDERS OF SALAMA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDT JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

Management is responsible for the other information. Other information comprizes the infommation included in the
Company*s 2019 annual report bat does not include financial statements and our auditors® repaort thereon. The
annual report is expected o be made available to us affer the date of this auditors” report.

Cnr openion o the financial sotements does sot cover the ofher information and we do not and will nol express
any torm of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our andit of the financial satements, our responsibality is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is mategally
inconsistent with the financial statemerts or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
miaterially misstated.

When we read the other information, 1f we conclude that there is & material misstatement therein, we are required
to communicate the matter to those charged with povernance,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statemenis

Manapgement is responsible for the preparation and fair presendation of the financial statements in accordance with
IFR. Sz as endomsed in KSA, the applicable requirements of the Companies’ Law. the Company's By-Laws and for
guch mternal control a8 management determing 18 necessary (o enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or emor.

In preparing the financial statements, management ig responsible for azseszing the Company's ability to confine
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to pomg concern and vsing the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Chr objectives are to obtain reasonabla assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due o fraud or error, and o issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion,
Reasonable assurance iz a high level of assurance, but iz not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with I5A% that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia will always detect 4 material misstatement when it
exsis. Missiatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected o influence the economic decizions of vsers taken on the basis of these
financial statements.
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INDEFENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT (continued)
TO THE SHAREAOLDERS OF SALAMA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDT JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

Aunditors" Re nsibvilities forr the Aundit of the Financial Statements {continoed

As part of an audit in accordance with ISA that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Sandi Arabia, we exercise
professional judgment and mamtain professional skepticism throughout the audic. We also;

»  Tdentify and assess the nsks of matenal ousstatement of the finanpcal statements, whether due (o mod o
error, design and perform - awdit procedures responsive o those fsks, amd obtain msdit evidence that iz
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a maternial misstatement
resulting from frand = higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the overnde of internal control.

» Obtan an understanding of internal control relevant 1o the andit in order to design endit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company '3 infernal control,

» Evaluate the appropristeness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

o CUonchode on the appropristeness of management’s uze of the going concern Faziz of accounfing and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related 1o events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continee as a going concern. If we conclade that a material
uncertamnty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors” report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements of, if such disclosure: are inadequate, o modify our opinion. Our conclizions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up 1o the date of our anditors” report. However, futire évents or conditions may
cause the Company to cease o confinue as 4 going cOncern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structurs and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transaction: amd evenis in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicae with theee charged with govemance regarding, among offer matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with govemance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and fo communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thowshi (o bear on our independence, and where applicable, relaied salepuands,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT ({contlnueil)
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SALAMA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDLIOINT STOCK COMPANY' )

2 itites for the Aodit of tle Financial Statements (continmed

From (e umilers communicated with (hose charged with govenibee, we determine those prtters that wepe of
mnal significance in the sudit of the financisl statements of the cument perind and are therefore the key audi
malters. We describe these maners in owr auditors’ report unless law or regulation precledes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely mre circumstances, we determine thet a matter should not be
communicated in our report becmuse the adverse consequences of deing so would reasonably be expected 1o
outweigh the public inferest benefits of such cominunication.

Forr Al Azem, Al Sudairy, Al Shalkh & Partners For Moore El Sayed El Ayouly & Co.
Certified Public Accountants Certified Public Accountants

Abdullah M. AlAzem Mohamed E| Sayed El Ayoury 2
Certified Public Accounant Cerfified Public Accountant
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SALAMA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

SSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Term deposits
Premiums and reinsurers” receivable — net
Reinsurers’ share of unearied premiums
Reinsurers’ shore of outstanding claims
Reinsurers” share of claims Incurred but not reported
Dreferred policy acguisition costs
Imwestments
Prepaid expenses and sther assets
Right of use assets- net
Property and equipment- net
Intangible assels- net
Statwiory deposit
Accried commission on siatutory depost
TOTA 5

LIABILITIES

Policyholders claims pavable
Accrued Expenses ond other linhilities
Lense Liabilities

Reinsurers” balances payable
Linearned pramiums

Linearmed reinsurance commission
Oststanding claims

Claims incurred but not reported
Premium deficiency reserve

Crher techaical reserves

Employee benefit obligations

Surplues distribution payabie
Provision for zakat

Accrived commission income payable to BARMA
TOTAL LIABILITIES

Share copital
Statutory reserve
{Accumulated Loses) retained eamings

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY

Re-measurement reserve of defined benefit obligations — relatzd io

insurance operations
TOTAL EQUITY
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND E 3

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGEMCIES

o s
thicfﬁmmiﬁﬁ

019 2018

Nt SRMMMH)
4(a) 28,411 E6,Ba0
4(b) 255 489 241,515
g 6,207 155,444
13 21,858 13,139
13 #,745 13,316
13 12,273 10,467
i G033 14,135
A 2122734 178,812
0 11,359 2437
(2 26,936 .
1 12,044 14,459
L1 6504 7157
|4 37,500 25 000
14 3,318 2680
742,221 BE7 376
13,943 T.583
16 23,827 52179
12 13,703 .
7411 6,547
13 2290678 287093
17 34m 2543
I3 38,953 58,370
13 130,586 151,550
I3 0782 5083
P31 6,259 6,375
1% 3688 B.041
14,535 14,535
3 25,131 19,761
14 3518 2486
540,425 623,586
24 250,000 250,000
S0 5003
an T
202,59 262711
(5] (800 1.0
20, TG 263,700
742,111 BET3T6
15 - Ju“ - I|'I';.h:|l_'_|

Chief Financial ﬂﬂ’]nTr

The accompanying nofes from 1 1o 33 form an integral part of these financial statements
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SALAMA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

2018
2019 {Restated)
Potes SHHH)
REYVENLUES
Ciross premiums written 13 503,504 734,982
Reinmurance premiums ceded
= Local (601) {933)
- Foreign (48.614) (23,650
13 {40, 305) (24,643
Encees of l0ss expenses
- Luszal [ded) {557
Foreign (15871) (X3 438)
{16,335) {22.995)
Met premiums written 437 864 687,344
Changes in unearned premiums, net 13 i, 134 39,765
Met preminms enrned Z03,998 727,108
Reinsurance commissions ) 5953 6,317
Oiher underwriting income 2,216 5,184
TOTAL REVENUES S1L167 TIE610
UNDERWRITING COSTS AND EXPENSE
Cirpes claims paid T s01.3210 376,79
Reinsurers’ share of claims paid T {31,848) {18,154)
Met cluims paid 469,471 358,630
Changes in outstanding claims, net I3 {14, 8di) 9516
Changes in claims incurred but not reparted, net i3 {23,110) 105629
Met clalms incurred 431,516 AT, TRI
Changes in Fremium deficiency reserve 4,699 2,779
Changes in other technizal reserves {116} 2398
Policy acquisition costs f 28,031 119310
Ciiher underwriting expenses 21,345 24,785
TOTAL UNDERWRITING COSTS AND EXPFENSES R5475 642,674
MET UNDERWRITING INCOME 26,692 03 936

= A

Chief Execufive Officer

The accompaiying notes from 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial stements

1



SALAMA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
LA Saudi Joint Stock Company )

STATEMENT OF INCOME - Continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Motes
OTHER OFERATING (EXPENSES) / INCOME
Allowance for dowktfl debts 5
{reneral and pdmimistrative expenses 26
Investment income
Commission from Held to materity investments
Linrealized gain on imvestmends
Reversul of provision for doubiful debis
Other income

TOTAL OTHER OPERATING (EXPENSES)

iLoss) /! Ineome before surples ond zakat

Ln 28 gm

Incesme attribuied o the insurance operations

{Luss) income for the vear attributable to the shareholders before
zakat
Zakai 23

NET (LOSS) INCOME FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TD
THE SHAREHOLDERS

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
Basic and diluted {loss} /| eamings per shans .5

(27 S

Chief Executive Officer \

S
a ]

Chief Financial Officer

2018
2019 { Restated)
SR'000
- (7.4596)
{100,331) (91,897
4,585 7,547
5,306 .
3,368 405
4,604 ]
1,601 8,736
(B0L80°7) (78,154)
(54,115} 17,782
- 11,435
{54,115) 16,343
i (VDN i G000
(640,115) 10,343
25,000 25,000
i2.40) oAl

The accompanying notes from 1 1o 33 form an integral part of these financial statements
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SALAMA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
{A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Mofes

NET (LOSS) ¢ INCOME FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Items that will not be reclassified to statements of income in
sulsmequent venrs

Actoarial (losses) ! gains on defined benefit obligation — related w

Insurance operations "

Total comprehensive {loss) / income for the vear

2018
2019 (Restated)
SR'000
(60,115) 10,343
{1,879) 1,079
{61,994) 11,422

Chief Execafive Officer

Chief Financial Offioer ™

The sccompanying notes from | 10 33 form an integral par of these finoncial statements

s
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SALAMA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company )
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
209 ik
SR'M0
CASH FLOWS FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES
{Loss) income before surplus and fakal (54,1155 17,782
Adiustments for nog-cash items:
Depreciation of property and sgquipment 52 1,148
Amurizzation of iftangible asses 1,685 B58
Amrtzzation of hebd 10 maturity investments St T
Aldlpwunee for dpubiful debis - 7408
Reversal of provisien for douabifial debas il bld) -
Commassaon fran bekd to maturaty investments (5,366} -
Unrealized galn on fyvestments in Gur vabee throwgh siatement of income (3, 368) {4,4%5R)
Reealized gain on investments i falr value through siatement of income - {2, Tad)
Entploves benelin obligations 1100 1,373
{58, 444) 3.216
Lhanges in tperating assgis apd linbilities:
Premiums and resnsurers” recsivable T3,841 {641
Reinsarers” share of uneamed premiums (8,71%) {4.250)
Reinsurers” share of cutstanding claims 4,571 {3.365)
Retnsurers” share of claims Incurred bt nai reported (1, 8ihi) {8,974}
Icrease in right of use asses - net {16,936) -
Digferred policy scquisition cosis 5102 £
Prepoid expenses nnd oiher asscis 15,018 {LeT4)
Increase in bease liahilities 23703 -
Accrued commissin froan staluiory depaessl {642} {322}
Policyholders and elaims payvable i, 3dl {3,929)
Apcrwed expense and other liabilitses {18,551) 15252
Reinsurers” holances payable 1,204 {31.355)
Linearmed premiums (574151 135.516)
Unarned selnsirancs eaminigsion HSH 299
Cursinnding claims (19417} L1881
Claime incurred but not reponted {31,205 13
Premium deliciency reserves 4, o0 .79
Ciher technbeal reserves {114 2,408
Accrued commission income pavahbe to SAMA fid2 i
(49,293} (26,915}
Zakat paid {630} {4428}
Employee henifits paid 13.352) (615}
Met cash Nows used in operating activities {95 275) (31,938)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Furchase of investmienis {127.821) {200 A1)
Proceeds from sale of invesiments PLE 420 351338
Statutory deposit {12,500 -
Pacement of term deposiis {355, 0081) (290,757
Proceeds from term deposiis 341,026 264 554
Froceeds from held to maturity investments Hil, 154 -
Purchase of propeny and equipment (2627} {126T6)
Purchase of infungible osssis (835} (B3]
Med cash Nows from investing activities RT ik, 424
Met chanpe in cash and cash equivalents {58, 458) T2 il
Cash and cash equivalends, a1 the beginning of the year B BET 14403
e i i) M
(a -
Chiel Executive-Cficer o Board Member

Chief Financial Officer

The accompanying notes from 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements
¥




SALAMA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
{A Sawdi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

1. GENERAL

Salama Cooperative Insurance Company (“the Compary™) 15 8 Saudi Joint Stock Company incorperated in the
Kingdom of Smadi Arabia as per the Ministry of Commeree and [ndustey’s Resolotion number 112 1K dated 29 Raba
Al-Thany 1428H (corresponding to 16 May 2007). The Compaoy is remstered m Jeddab wnder Commercial
Regrtration Mo, 4030165661 dated & Jamad Al-Awwal 142 5H (comesponding to 23 May 2007)

The Begistered Office address of the Company is;

Salama Tower;

Al Madisah Road

P.Ox Box 4000,

Jaddah 21491;

Kingdom of Saudl Arabis

The objctive of the Company is o ransact cooperative msurance operations and related activities in the Kingdom
af Saudi Ambia. The Company wax listed on the Saodi Seock Exchange oo 23 May 2007, The Comspany siarted ity
operations oa 1 January 2008, The Company is fully owned by the penersl public and Saudi shareholders.

The Company received the approval Eiers from the Sandi Arabian Mosetary Authomty {SAMA) and Minktry of
Commerce and Investment regarding the amendment of the Company”s by-laws to be in accordance with the new
companies’ reguaticos, The Company’s general assembly wens held on 11 Ramadan 14381 {coresponding to 6
Juie 200 7} and accordingly the sew ba-laws was approved,

2, BASIS OF PREPARATION
a.  Hasis of presentation

Thesze financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Intermational Financial Reporting Sandands
{"TFRS5) Az endorsad i the Kingdom of Saudl Arabia (“KSA™), and other stindards and pronsuncements isssed by
Smudi orgamization for Certified Public Accountants {"SOCPA") (referred 1o as “TFRS as endorzed in KSA™) The
finencial statements of the Company 2= at and for the vearended 30 December 2009 were prepared in compliznce
with TFRS az endorsed in KSA

On 17 July 2009, SAMA instrucied the inswance companies i the Kingdom of Saudi Ambm@ to accoune for the
Zakat and income taxes in the statement of incomse. This aligns with the [FRS as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia and other standards apd pronouncements issued by the Saudi Organization for Certibed Public Accoumntants
{"SCECPAT),

Accordingly, the Compady changad it accouning treatment for Zakat and income tax by rettospectively adjusting
tlee ippact m boe with Inevsarional Accounting Stesdard {8) Accounting Policies, Changes i Accountiisg
Estmmates and Emrors {a= disclosed in note 3 (b) to the finopncial statements).

The finsocml statement 1z prepared under the going concem bazsis and the lstorical cost comvention, except for the
meazurement of iovestiments {excluding beld-ro-maturity) af their fag valoe and re-measurement of emploves
benefit obligations. The Company’s statement of finascial position 15 presemed in order of Lqudity. Excepl for
property and equipment, right of vse asssts, intangible assetz, sbtory deposit, Emplovee bensfits, outztanding
claims, claims incured but oot reported, all other assets and liabilities are of sher-termy natere, unless, stated
otherwise.

As required by the Saudi Arabian Insurance Fegulations (the Implementation Regulations), the Company maintms
separate books of scounts [ur “Tosurance Opertions” amd “Sharcbolders” Opemtions™, Accordingly, assels,
liabilities. revenues and expenses clearly atiributable ro either operation. sre recorded in tle respective accounts,

Similaely, in the past, the Comrpany’s anmeal finascial statements presented separately the stareanents of fimaneial
position, income, comprehensive income and cash flows for the insurance operstions and shareholders operations.
The basiz of alkecation of expenses from joint operations i3 defernuned and approved by the macagement and the
Baoard of Directors.



SALAMA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
{A Sawdi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

2, BASIS OF PREPARATION — (continmed)

a.  Basix of preseniation — (continwead)

The steiement of financial podition, siatements of noome swd spement of comprehensive inooee amd casll ows of
the nsurance operations and sharcholders’ operations which are presented op pages 532 to 58 of the financial
statements bave been provided as supplementary Gnancial mformation and to comply with the requirements of the
guidelines  Esued by SAMA mmpleosentng regolations. SAMA  implementing regulations  requires e clear
segrepation of ihe assels, liabilities, income and expenses of the msurance operations and the  shareholders®
operations. Accordingly, the statementz of finencial position, statements of ineome, compoehensive moome and cash
flows prepared for the insurance opemtions and sharchobders operations as referred to above, refiect only the assets,
liahilities, income, expenses and comprehensive gaing of losses of the respective aperations,

The inchiziom of separate informaiion of the msurance operations with the fimneial information of the Company in
the statements of financnl position, statement of income, statement of comprehensive moome, statement of cash
floors as well as certam relevant potes to the financial satements represents addifional supplementary information as
required by the impleisenting re gulations,

During 2018, vnder the supervision of SAMA. the insuwrmnce compenies’ nepnagemeni preparcd and adopted the
Uhastratove financial statements for the msurance ssctor o te Kingdom of Sawdi Arabia. In prepanng the Compamy
level financial statements in compliance with IFRS as modified by SAMA, the balances and transactionz of inswance
opezationg ere coarbined with those of sharclwolders” operations. lnter-operation balances and rensactions, of sy, are
eliminated in full. The accounting policies sdopted for the insurance and sharcholders” operations are uniform for like
iransactions and evepts in similar circumstances.

b. Fuonctional and presentation currency

These fmancial statements ave been presented in Sandi Arabian Bivals (SAR) whick is also the fosctional curency
of the Company. All financial iformation presented in Saudi Arabian Rival has been rounded to the mearest
Uhrissands, excem where otherwize indicared,

c. Fiscal vear
The Company follows a fiscal vear ending December 31,

i, Critical accounting judgments, estimates and assumplions

The preparation of the fimancial statements requines the use of estimates and judgments that affect the reported
amounts of assets and lisbilities and disclosurs of contingent assets and labeimties at the date of the financial
statetnents ad the repored amouns of révednes and expenges during the reporting vear, Although these estimates
and judements are based on mapagement's best knowledge of current events and actions, actual pesubta ultinately
may differ from those estmmates,

Estimates and judgments are contimeally evaluated and bazsed on historical expenience apd other factors. meluding
expecintons of fuhre events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.



SALAMA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
{A Sawdi Joant Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION — (rontinnet)

il. Critical acconmting judgments, estimates and assamptions — (confinned)
Followving are the accouming judgments amd estimares that are cnfical in preparcation of these fisancial satements:
1] Theultimate bability ansing from clams made under insurance contracts

The estimation of the ulimaie [abiliy ansing from claiims made under insurance contraces is the Company s maost
critical accounting estimate. There are several sources of uncertainty that need to be considered in the estimate of the
Linhility that the Company will ultimarely pay for such claims, Estimates are made at the end of the reporting peried
both for the expected ulitnate oost of claim reporied and for the expectsd wliimate cosis of clalms incurmred but ot
reported {“IBME™Y. Liabiitizs for unpaid reported claims are esiimated vsmg the input of assessments for individual
cazes reported o the Company, Al the end of each repoiting period, prier vear claims estimates are reassessad for
adeguecy and changes are made (o the provision.

The presasion for chums mowrred bt mot peported (IBNE) i3 an estimation of clams which are expected o be
reported subsaquent fo the date of stement of financial position, for which the ivenred event has occurred prior to
the date of statemeent of financial pozition. The primary technique adoptsd by management in estimating the cost of
woiified and IBMNE claims, i5 tet of using the past claims settlement trends to predict fiture claims settlement tremds,
A range of methods such as Clain Ladder Metbhod Bomlweter-Fergson Mathod and Expecied Loss Batio Method
are wsed by the achiaries to detenmmine these provisions. Actuary hed also used & segmentation approach melnding

analyzing cost per member per vear for medical lioe of business, Usderlying these methods are a number of explica
or mmplicit assnmpiions relating to the expocted sertlement amownt and settlement pattems of ¢laims.

i) Impairment of financinl sasets

The Company determines that financial assets are impaired whien there has been a signiticant or prolonged decline in
the fair valve of the financial pssstz belowr ite cost. The determmafion of what is significant or prolengsd requires
Jedgment. A period of 12 moaths or longer is considered 1o be prolonged and a decline of 25% from origisal cost is
considered sgnihicant as per Comoany policy, In makang this udgment, the Company evaluates among other factors,
the nommal volstiliy in share price, the financial health of the investze, ndustry and sector performance, changes in
technobogy, and pperational and financing cash fows,

iy Togpairment of receivables

A provision for miparment of receivables s established when thers 15 objeciive evidence st the Company will ol
be sbie to collecs all amoimes due according 1o the onginal rerms of e receivables, Significant financial difficalries
of e debtor, probabality that the debtor will enter bankruptey or financia! reorganizeton. and defanli or delinquency
Im pavmeents are considered Indicaors thar the recevable & Impaired,

iv)  Fair value of fissncial instroments

Fair values of availsble-for-zale mvestments are based on quoted prices for marketable secunties or estimated fair
vilues, The fair value of commizion-beanng items & estimated baged on discounted cash flows using commezsion
for ftema with similar tecing and risk characteristics,

The fair valoes of financial mstuments where no ective market exists or where guoted prices are ot otherwvise
available are determmed by vsing vakation technigues. Tn these cases the fair valees are estimated from obsenable
data in respect of simiker finencial instruments oF wsing models Where market observable inputs are nol available,
they are estimated based on appropriate assumptions. Where veluation techugues (for example. models) are vsed to
determine fair vaboes, they are valdated sod peoodically reviewed by qualified personne] independent of thoss that
sourced them, All models are cemified before they are used, and models are calibrated 1o ensure that ewputs reflect
actual data and comparative markst prices. To the sxfent practical, models use only chzervable data; however, areas
such az credit fsk (hoth oo credit sk and counterparty nsk), volatilities and comelations mquire management to
make estimates.



SALAMA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
{A Sawdi Joant Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION — (rontinnet)
il. Critical acconmting judgments, estimates and assamptions — (confinned)
%1 Useful lives of property and equipnwent
The Company's managemeni determines the estimsted useful lives of its property and equipment for caleulsting
depreciation. These estimates are determined after considering the expected usage of the assets or physical wear and

tear. Managsment reviews residual voloes and useful lives annually aed futare depreciation charges are adjusted
where mamngement believes the vseful lives differ om previous sstimates

¥i) CRoing conceri

The Company”s manngement bas made on aszessment of the Company’s ability to continue as 2 going concern amd 13
satisfied that it has the resouices 10 continee in bmsiness for e foreseeable future, Furflermore, management is mot
aware of any meterigl vocerainties tha mey Cest =igifeant dowbt upon e Conipany’s ahility 1o contimic 82 & poizg
concerm. Therefore, the financial statements continue to be prepared on the going concem basis.

e, Seasonality of operations
There are no geasodal changes thar may affect nswrance operations of the Coanpaiy.

3, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES

The significant sceonnting policies applied in the prepamtion of these fisancial statements ace swmmarized below,
Cerain comparatiive figures have been reclassified and regrouped to confionm with the current year's presentation as
dizclosed innote 3 {a) to these financial statements. These policies hove been consistently applied o each of the years
presemred exceps for the change in the accounring of Zakar and income fax and pew IFRS shodards, [FRIC
imterpreiations and smendments thereaf. adopied by the Company gy explained bebow:

a)  New [FRS, IFRIC and smendimsents thereof, adopled by the Company

The Company hes adopted the following new standards. amendments and revisions to existmg standards, which were
izsieed by the International Accounting Standards Board (LASE):

Standard’ Amendments Description

IFRS 14 Leases (22e below)

IFRIC 23 Uncerainty over Income Tax Treatments

IASs 28 Long terin inferests in associates and ol venhires
LAS 19 Plan amendments, curmailments or settlements
IFES 3.11 and IAR 12, 23 Annual Improvernents to IFRS 2015 - 2017 cyele.

IFHS 16 - Leases

IFES 16 - “Lenses™, applicable for the period beginning on of after 1 Jamary 2019, The pew stastard elinanares the
current dual sccoumntng model for lessess wwler IAS 17 which distiiguishes between on-balance sheet finance leases
and off-balance sheel operating leases, Instead, IFRS 16 proposes on-balance sheet accounting madel,

IFES 16 *Leases’ replaces TAS |7 ‘Leasss” alomg with three Interpremtions ([FRIC 4 "Determiming whiether an
Arrangement contains & Lease”, 5IC 13 "Operating Leases-Incenfives” amd SIC 27 Evaluaiing the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease’). The new Standerd has besn applied wing the modified
retrospective approach. prior peniods have not been restated,



SALAMA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
{A Sawdi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES - (continued)
aj  MNew IFRS, [IFRIC and smendments tlereofl, adopted by the Company — {continued)

IFRS 16 — Leases — (continmwed)

For coniracts in place a1 the date of inirial application, he Company bas glectad roapply the defimition of a lease from
145 17 and IFRIC 4 and has oot applied IFRS 16 10 arrmbgements that were previously ol identified as lease under
IAS 17 and TFRIC 4.

The Company has elected not 1o mclude initial direct costs m the measurement of the righl-of-mse asset for opetating
leazes in existence at the date of initial applicarion of IFES 16, being 1 January 2019, At this date, the Company has
also elected 1o measure the nght-of-use ssgets at an amount cqeal o the lesse lability adjusted for any prepaid or
accreed leass pavments that existed of the date of ransition.

Insrzad of performing an impairment reveew oo the mdght-of-use asacs at the date of ininel application, te Conpany
has relied co iz historic assessment as to whetber kases were onerous immediately before the date of mital
application of TFRS 18,

O ransition, for leases previously sccounted for a8 operating keases with 4 remaining lease tenm of less than 12
months and for kases of lowsralue assets the Company kas applied the optional exemptions to mot recopnize cight-of-
e assets but o account for the lease expense on a ptraight boe bazis over the remaining lease tarm.

For those leazes previously classified as tinance leazes, the right-oi-use asser and lease lnbiley are measured at the
date of mitial npplication at the same amowts as under IAS 17 mmedintely before the date of mitial application

Un mensition o IFRS L6, the weighted sverape incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities recognized
under TFRS 16 was 4 45

The Company hes benefited from the wee of hindsight for determining lesse term when conzidering options to extend
and terminate l=ases.

The folkswing oo reconcilibnion of wial opemtiog lesse commEimenis o 31 December 2018 10 the leess Hablites
and right of use assets recognized at | Jamsary 201%:

SR000
Total operating l=ase conmmitments g at 31 December 2018 34370
Driscounted nzsing tie lessee's incremental borrowing rate at date of initil application (7,238}
Total lease lishilities recognised under IFRS 16w | JTannery 2015 27041
Prepaid reat at 31 December 2018 4560
Rightof use assets at | Tanuany 2009 311601

The adoption of the other relevant new and amended standards and inferpretations applicable to the Compary did
leave any significant bpact on these financial statements,

by Change in sceounfing for Zakat and income tax

As mentioned monote 2, the basis of preparation has been changed for the year ended 31 December 20019 az a result of
the izsmnce of latest instructions from SAMA dated 23 Tuly 2019, Previeusly, Zakat and income tax wers recognizesd
in the satement of changes n equity as per e SAMA circulzr ne 331000074519 dated 11 April 2007, With the
latest inatructions izsued by SAMA dated 23 July 2019, the Fakat and income tax shall be recognmed 1o the statement
of income. The Company has sceounted for this chaoge m the accounting for Zakat and. mcome tax relrospectively,
The chamge las resulted in reduction of eportad income of the Company for the vear ended 31 December 2008 by
SR 6,000 thousand, The change had oo impact on the statement of cash flows for the year tien endad.



SALAMA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
{A Sawdi Joant Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES — [continued)
b Change in acconunting for LZalat and ineome tax — [continved)

Income thx

The income tax expense of credit for the periad iz the 1ax payable on the cusrent peciod s taxable income, basad on
the apphcable income tmx rate, adjusied by changes in deferred tax assets and lisbilities stmbuteble to tmporary
differences and toumused &nx losses.

IFRIC Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment

The lnterpretation addresses the accounting for income taxes when fx treatnients invelve uncertainty that affecs the
application of IAS 12 Income Taxes: It docs not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of IAS 12, nor does ot
specifically e lude requirements relating w inerest and penalries associared with uncerain 1@y weanments

The Interpretation specifically addresses the followmg:

¥ Whether an entity considers wertain tax treatments sepasately;

W The assnmptions am enfity makes about 1he examanation of tax treastments by taxation authorities,

. Heow an entity determunes taxoble profit {tox loss), tax bases, vomsed tax losses, nnused tax credits and tax
rates; and

' How an eatity conssders changes in facts and circumstances

An entity has to determine whether to conzider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together with one or maore
oflier. uncerthin fax weanments, The approach thar bemer predices the resolution of the wmeertainty nesds o be
followed.

The Company applies significant jud gment in identifving wicertainiies over Moonss T irestmets.

Upon adoption of the Interpretation, the Company consmdered whether it bas sy uncertain tax positions, particulary
those relating to racsfer pacing, The Company®s 1ax flingy include deductions relsted to tmnsfer pricing and the
taxgtion mithorities may challkenge these tax ireatments. The Company determined, based on it tex compliance and
trammfer pricing stody that o iz probsble thar e wax reatments will be accepied by the taradon awthorities. The
Interpretation did not bave an mmpact co the financil statements of the Company.

Lakat

The Company is subject o fakat in accordance with the regulations of the General Awthority of Zakat and Income
Tax {"CAZT). Zakat expense 15 charged to the profit or loss. Zakat is not accomted for as income tax and as such
1 deferred x i caleolaied relating to Zakat,

Tonpact on the financial stabements

The change m the accounting policy for Zakst and meome tax kas the followme impact on the ling items of the
statements of incoms nod changss in sharcholdem” equity:

As at and for the vear anded 31 Dwcember 2018;
Betore the Effect of

Acoount Financial statemwent impac fed restpternent pestatement As restbed
SR SR BRSO
Zakat Staterment of income - {6000 ) {6000
Met income for the period

Statement of income

attributable 1 sharcholders 16,343 { G} 10,343

Earming: per share for the vear Staternent of Income 065 {324} 041

Zakat {retained eamings) statement of changes in equity {6 ) £,000 -
Siatement of comprelensive

Total comprebensive iIncome for income and statement of changes

the vear in equity 17422 {6,000} 11422
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{A Sawdi Joant Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES — [continued)
b Change in accounting for Zalat and ineome tnx — [continved)

The financial impact of sdoption of accomfing pelicy for deferred 1ax 15 oot matenal © the financil sttements,
iherefore prior period amounts have not been restated

Az requered under [AS (8) Acommiong Polictes, Changes m Accounting Estimates and Emors, the balances as of |
Tannary 2018 were not presented in the statement of financial posifion az change in the accmmimg policy has ot
resulted in restatement of the ameonnts relating 1o vear ended 31 December 2017,

) Standards isaed bot not yved effec tive

Stepdands izsued but not vet effective up to the date of issuance of the Uompany's finoncial statements are listed
helow, The lisfing iz of znderds and inferpretations izmed, which the Companmy reasonably expects to be spplicable
at a future date, The Company intemds to adopt these standards when they are effective,

Effective from periods

Standarid! beglnning on o after
Luterpretation Description the folbowleg date
Amendments o [FES 3 Drefinition of business 1 January 2020
Amendments o [AS | & [AS S Drefimition of material 1 Farmiary 2020
[FRS 1T lnmurance Conleecis Ses note below
IFRS O Financinl Instruments Seenote beloar

IFRS 17 — lusurance Coniracis
Orverview

This stmsdard lsas been published on 18 May 2017, it establishes the principles for the recoguiton, mseasiorenwent,
prezentation and disclosure of insurance contracts and supersedes IFRS 4 - Insurance contracts.

The mew stamdard applies 0 insurance cooiracis sseed, wooall reinsurance contmels and o nvesiment conimels with
discretimary participating features provided the entity also issues insurance contracts, [0 requires o separate the
follewing components from insurance confracts:

1. Embedded depivatives, if they mest certain specified criteria;

11 Dnstinet mvestment components; and

Ll Ady promise o mramsler distne goods of B-I0Srance Jervices.

These componensts should be accounted for sepamately in accopdance with the related standards (TFRS 9 and [FRS 1 5)

Measurement

In contrast w0 the requirement= in [IFRS 4, which permitted inswrers to continue w0 w=e the accounting policies for
megsurement purposss that existed poor to January 2015, IFRS 17 provides the following ditferemt measurement
mode]s:

The Geperal mode] 15 based on the follewing “building blocks™

ab  The fulfillment cash Aows (“FCF"), which comprise:
» Probability-weighted estimates of foture cash flows,
* g adjustimen worellect the vme value of mooey (Le discoupting ) amxd the Onsmceal nsks associated with those
futwere cash flows,
¢+ aod a nak adpustment for non-fmanc il nsk;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

3. BIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES — (continued)
. Standards issued but not yet effective — (contimued)

IFRS 17 — Insurance Conteacts — (contimed)

bl The Cootractual Service Main ("C8M™). The C5M represenis the unearned profit for a group of insurance

confracts and will be recognized as the entity provides services in the future, The CSM camnol be negative at

mception; amy net negative amount of the fulfillment cazh flows at inception will be eoorded m profit or loss

imediately. At the end of each subsequent reporting peniod the carrvirg amount of a goup of mnswance

contracts 15 remeasured 1o be the sum of

*  The lisbility for remeining coverage, which comprizes the FCF related to famre services and the C5b of the
group ot that date;

o amd the liability for incurred claims, which iz mepsuréd az the FCF related to past sesvices allocated 1o the
group at that date,

The O5M & adjusted subsequemly for changes in cash flows related to fomre services b the CSM cannot be
megative, a0 changes in fumre cash flows that are greater than the remainmg CEM are recognized m profit or keas,
The effect of changes o discount rates will be mported in either profit or loss or other comprehensive income,
deermined by an accouming policy cholce,

The Vanable Fee Approach {"WFA™) & a mandatory madel for measuring contracts with direct partscipation features
{alzo referved 1o s “direct participating contracts’), This assesament of sehether the contract meets these criteria iz

made at inceptin of the contract and nof reassessed subsedquiently, For these contracts, the TSM is also adjusted for in
additson to adjustment under GMM, the C5M & also adjusted for;

1. Changes m the ewiity’s share of the fair value of undeclying stems.
it Changes in the-effect of the tone vale of money and finapcial risks nof relating to the undeclving itetns,

I addition, & sunplified Premivm Allocation Approach ("PAA™) & perinitted for the measurement of the labiliny for
the remaining coverage if it provides n measurement that & not materially different from the general moded or if the
eoverage persod for sach contract in the groop is one vear or less, With the PAA the hability for remaining covenge
coftesponds o preminims received at initial recognition less insurance acguisition cash flows, The general model
remaims applicatde for e measurement of ncurred claims, However, the emity = ool required 1o adjust furire cash
flervs for the time vahie of moasey and the effect of financial mask if these cash flows are expectad o be paidrecemned
im one year or less from the dete the cloims are incurred.

Effective dafe

The TASE issued an Expoeurs Draft Amendments fo TFRS 17 duning June 2019 apd received comments from varioss
stakelwolders, The LASE i currently re-deliberating issnes taised by stakeholders. For any proposed amendments to
1IFRs 17, the 1ASH will follow ils normal due process for standard-=stting, The effective date of [FES 17 and the
defermal of the TFRS 9 tempormry exemption in IFRS 4, = currently | Japeary 3021 . Under the csrrent exposure dradt,
it is proposed o amend the IFRS 17 effective date o réporting periods beginmng on or after 1 January 2022 This iz a
deferral of | year compared to the previows date of | Jamery 2021, Earlier application is permitted if both IFRS 15 —
Revenue from Comtracts with Costomiers and TFRS 9 — Financial Tnstrements have also been applied. The Company
infend to apply the standard on its effective dare,

Transition

Retrospective application 1= required. However, if full retroapeciive application for & group of mserance contracts 13
imipracticable, then the enfity is required o choose either o modified retrospective approach or & fair valne approsch,

Precentation amd Disclosmes

The Company expects that the new stancdard will result in a change to the acconning policies for insurance comiracts
together with amendments to presentation and disclosures.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES — [continued)
. Standards isswed bot nol vet effective— (continued)

IFRS 17 — Insnrance Coniracis — (conilmaed)

Tmipact

The Compasy 18 cwrently assessing the inpact of tle spplication and implementation of [FRS 17, As of the date of
the publication of these financial statements, the financial impact of adopting the standard has vet to be fully assessed
by the Company, The Company has undertaben a Gap Analvsis and the ke areas of Gaps are as follows

Impact Area | Summary of Impact

Financial Impact | # The company 5 currestly nndergong a financial impact assessment exercise
To-azsess the financial mmpact of implementing 1IFRS 17,

Drata Impact {# Date impact 15 likely to be msignificant as majonty of the company’s
contracts, being less than & year, would qulifv for messurement under tle
premsum allecaton approsch, wlich 12 more or less similar o tlse cuerent
approach adopted by the Company under TFRS 4.

IT Srstems e The comgany s i the process of fimlizing it asscsament of IT system
requirements and these requirements are being documented for onboarding
an IT vendor for providing Actesral and Finascial solutioms for masaging
chadige reguired wader IFRS 17,

Process Impact (o The company is currently undergoing an operational impact assessmet
exercise o assess the operational impact of mmplementing IFRS 17,

| e Since, majonty of the company’s conmracts would be meamired nmder the
premaum allocation approach, the process mmpact is expected to be moderate.

Impact an BRI Armangements [ The reinnurance contracts held by the Compamy are under review and arve
being asszased to determine the appliceble measurement model nunder IFRS
L7,

Iimpact o Policies & Cottrol | The company has hired an extemsl consultent to modify their current
Frameworks policies and coniral framework to be in line with IFRS 17 reguirements,

20
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES — (continged)
. Stamdards isswed but not vet effective— (continued)

TFRS ¥ - Financial Instrmpents {inchiding amendments io IFRS 4, Insurance Condracts)
This standard was published on 24 July 20014 and s replaced TAS 3% The new standard addresses the following
items related to financeal instnomeants:

Classification and measarement

IFES 9 uses a single approach to determune whether a financial asset 15 measured at amontsized cost, tair valoe through

other comprehensive income or fair value through proft or loss, A finascial aszef is measuped af amortized cost if

baoth:

i, the asset iz beld within a business model whose objective (2 o hold assem in onder to collect contracmal cash
flows and

il the conracmial rermis of the Hnancial ser give nise on specified dares 1o cash flows that ape wlely pavients of
principal and inferest on the prncipal amount onistanding (<SPPI

The fneocial asset is messured at fair value through other comprehensive income and realized gains or bosses would
b recyveled through profii or boss opon zale, if both comditions ars met:

i the asser iz held within & busines mode]l whose objeciive & 10 hold assets in order to collect coatractual cash
flows and for sale and
il the coirractual teems of cash flows ave SPPL

Assets nof meetmg either of these categones are measured at fair value theough profit or sz, Addtiosally, at mitial
recognifion, an enfity can e the opfion to designate a financial agset at fair value throagh peafit or losz if doing 20
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch. For equity mstruments that are oot held for treding, an
enfify can also make an irrevocable election to prezent o other comprebensive income subsequent changes o the fair
valie of the mstrments (including realized gaing and loszes), dividends being recognized in statement of ncome.

Additionally, for financial liabilities that are designated as at fair valve through protit or loss. the amount of change in
e fair value of the financial liabality that iz atributable to changes in the credit risk of that labilitv is recognized in
other comprebensive ncome, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the bisbality™s credit sk in other
comprebensive income would creste or enlarge an sccounting msmatch in statement of Icome.

Tmapadr ment

The inspaimsent mwodal under IFRE 8 peflects expecred credit loszes, as opposed to icurmed eredit loszes wivder [AS
39, Unider the IFRS ¥ approach, it is no longer necessary for o credst event to beave ocourred before crednt losses are
recognized. Instead, an entity abways aceonnts for expected credit losses ("ECL™) and changes i those expected
credit losses The amoum of expected credst bogges iz vpdated ar each reporting date o peffect chanpes m credit risk
since iutial recognition,

Hedge accounting

IFES 2 infroduces pew requirements for hedge accounting ter align bedge accountimg more clossly with Risk
Management. The requirements establish a more principles-bazed approach to the general bedge accounting model.
The amendments apply to all hedpe accounting with the exception of portfolio fair value hedges of interest rate risk
(commenly referred o & “fair valve macro bedges"). For these, an entity nmy conlinee to apply the hedge
Accounling requirements currently o IAS 3%, This exceplion was grapied largely becauze the TASBE 15 addressing
macto edge accounting & & separate project.

Effective date

The published effective date of IFRE % was 1 Januwery 2018, However, amendments to [FRS 4 - [nsurance Contacts:
Appiving [FRS @ — Financial Instruments with IFES 4 — Insorance Contescts, published on 12 September 2016,
chagges the cotisting IFRS 4 o ollow enfitics izsuing inswemnee contracts within the scope of IFRS 4 o mitigate
certain effects of applymg IFES % before the IASBE’: pew msursnce comtract standard {([FRS 17 — Inswrance
Conimcts) beoomes effective,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES - (continued)
. Standards isswed bot not vet effective — (continned)

IFRS % - Financial Instouments {lochiding awemdiments io IFRS 4, Insurance Coniracts) — (continaed)
The amendnsents introduce two alremative options;

L. apply a temporary exemption from implementing IFRS % until the earlier of

a.  the effective date of & new insirance contract standard; or

b, anmenl reporting periods beginning on orafter 1 Tameary 2021, The IASB 1= proposing to extend the effective date
of IFES |7 and the IFES 9 teinporary exemption in IFES 4 to 1 Jamesey 2022, Additomal declosures related to
finzncial assets are required during the deferral period. This opton is only availeble to estities whose activities
are predominately connected with msuwrance and bave not applied TFRS @ previowsty; or

2. adopt IFES 9 but, for designated financial assetz, remeve from profit or loss the effects of some of the scommting
mismsches that may occur before the pew msemme contract sapdard is implememed. Durmg the memn persod,
additional disclosures are required,

The Company bas perfomned o detailed assessment beginning 1 Janwary 1017

{1} The carming amount of the Compeny’s lzbilites anzing from contracts within the scope of IFRS 4 (mcluding
deposit components or emwbedded derivatives onbumiled from mswrsme conimacsl were compared & the tolal
carrying amount of all its liabilities: and

(2} the wial camying amount of the company™s Labilines conpecwed with isurasce were compared o the ol
carrying amount of all its liabilites. Based on these assesaments the Company determined that it is eligible for the
temporary exemption.  Consequently, the Company has decided to defer the implementatson of IFES 9 untl the
effecive date of the pew insurance coniracls standand. Disclsures relatzed o Goancial assels required dumg the
deferral period are inchaded 1o the Company's financial statements,

Toapaw: | assessmie ol

Ag gt 31 December 201%, the Company has towal fnmwcial asseis and insnrence relaied pesers amounting o 53R
613,859 thonsand and 5B 128,647 thousand, mspectively, Currently, financial assets beld at amortized cost consist of
cash and cash equivalents and cerfam other recervables amounting to SR 428104 thoosand (3015, SR 549,763
tlozzand). Other finsncisd aszeis consst of wvailable for sale invesimens amoming o SR 1,933 thowsand (2018 88
1923 thousand }. The Compary expect to use the FVWOCT classification of these finencial assets based oo the business
model of the Company for debt securnties and sArategic mature of equity imvestments, However, the Conspany is vet 1o
periorm & detailed azzessment to determine whether the debt szcurities meet the SPPI test 83 required by IFRS 9.
Other financial aszeis bave a fair value of SR 183,837 thousand as et 31 December 2009 with-a fair value change
during he vear of SR 9,027 thowsand. Credit risk exposure, concentration of credit rizsk and credit quality of these
financipd azsets are mentoned in note 24, The Company financiel assets have boor credit nisk az at 21 December 2019
and 2018, The above i5 based on high-level mpact assessment of IFRS 2. This preliminary assessment &= based on
currently avaibable information and may be subject 1o changes ariFEng from furher demiled analvaes or additional
ressuasble and supporable nfonmation being made available o the Company m the fumre, Overall, the Company
expects some effect of applving the inpainnent requirements of [FRS 9 However, the impact of the same &5 not
expected to be significant. Af present it 15 not posstble fo provide reasomable estimate of the effects of application of
Uiz mew standard as the Company is vel o perfonm i detailed review
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES - (continued)
dj  The significant accounting policies vsed in preparcing these financial statements are sef out below:

Insuragce contracts

Insurance coniracts are those contracts where the Company {the insarer) kas accepted significant irsurance nsk from
anather pary (the policviwolders) by sgreeing to compensare the policvholders if a specified uncertain fotere avent
{the insured event) adversely affects the policybolders. A a general puidelme, the Comparny determnines whether &
has sigmficant msurnnce risk, by assessmg whether ap insured event could cawse the Company to pay sigmficant
addirional benefits, Insurance contracts can also ransfer financial rsk.

Once s contract has been classified a3 an insurance coniract, it remams an msurapce comtmact for the remamder of its
lifetume, even if the insurance risk reduces significantly during this peried, wnless all mghts and obligstions are
extnpuished or expire.

Insurance contracts are principally divided into medical. marme, property, motor, enmnesring and accident and
liability and are principally shori-term insuence coniracts,

Medical insurance 15 designed to compensate policy holders for expenses incurred in treatinent of a disease, illness oc
injury. Medical insumnes iz primarily offersd to corporate customers with a large population te be covered nnder the
poley.

Maring insurance 5 designed to compensate polieyvholders for damags and liebility arising through losz or damage to
manne crafthull and accidents at sea resulting in the total or partial loss of carpess. For marme msucance, the main
risks are loss or damage 1o marine crafibull and cargoes.

Property insurance confracts mainly compenszate the Company's customers for damage suffered o their properties,
Customers coubd also receive compenzation for the loss of samings throogh loss of profit and business interraption.
For property iInsurancs contracts the mam risks are fire, oatural perils. bwsiness interraption and burgiary.

Motor insurance 15 designed to compensate contract holders for damages sutfered to their vehscles or liabiliby 1o thard
parties arizing through accidents, Contmet holders counld also recerve compermation for fire or theft of their velacles,
The Company also izsnes comprelensive motor policies. Varous exfemion: cover natural perils, personal acckden
benetits and apency repairs.

Creneral accudent insurance inchides money, fdelity gusrantee, personal sccident, jeweler Block, jewelry all msks and
travel imewance. Lisbility inenrance mchlides general thied-pacty  liabality, prodect liabilite, workmen’s
compensation/emplover’s linbility, medical malpmetice and professionnl indemmity cover protectng the msured’s
legal Labality arising out of acts of pegigence during their business operations.

Engmesning inswmnee covers b prncipal brpes:

{a) “Contrectors all mak™ insurance offering eover during erection o congmmaciion of buildings or covil
engineering works such &= houses, shops, blocks of fats, factory bulldings, roads, building=s, bridpes. sewage works
atd reservors,

b} “Erection all rizsk™ insurance offering cover during ihe erection or ixstellation of plant and machinery such as
power stations, ‘il refineries, chemical works, cement works, metallie stechees or any fctory with plant amd
maghinery, The Engineenng line of business also ioeludes machmery breakdown insurance and Bosiness Intermsption
fodlowing machinery breakdown and melndes electronic equipment, boiler and deterioration of stocks nsurance.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES — {confinued)
) Tle significant acconnting policie: wsed in preparing these finawcial sratements are set oot below (eontinned)

Revenme Recognifion
Recogniion of premim

Premivmes and commizsion are recorded in the statement of income based on steaight line method over the inswrance
polcy coverage period except for long tenn polices (construction and engineering) and marnine corgo. Unearned
premmiums are caleulated on o straight hne method over the insurance policy covernge except for

= Last three months premium ar & reporting date s considered as wearmed in reapect of marine cargo;

*  Pre-defined calculation for Enginesring class of business for risks undertaken that extend bevond a
single wear, In scoordance with this calculation, lower premiums are earned in the first vear which
gradually increases towerds the eod of the tenure of the policy: and

Unearned premimms represent the portion of preminms written relating to the apexpired penod of covernpe. The
change in the provizion for wsearned premivm 5 raken 1o the swrement of iBcome m e same order 1l revense 3
recognised over the pericd of risk,

Beinsurasee asgumed

The Compasy alse apsumes reinserance nisk o the normal courss of business for Medical insurmnce contracts where
applicable. Premiums amd claims on assumed reinsurance are recognised as revene or expenses in the same manmer
as they would be if the remsurence were considered direct business, aking isto account the product classification of
the reinsured busness, Remsurance liabilitizs represent balances due to insurance companies. Amounts payable are
estimated ina manmer consistent with the related reinsurance confract, Premivms and claims are presented ona gross
bazis for both ceded and sssumed reinsurance. Reinsurance assets or lisbilittes are derscopnised when the contractuad
nghts are extinguished or expre or when the contract is transfemsd to apother party,

Beipsurance conracts (st do nol irapsfer sigmlicant insurdoce risk are sceomted for directly throegh the staement
of financial position, These are deposit assers or finaocial liabilities that are recognised based on the comsideration
paid or received less any explicit identified premiums or faes to be refained by the reinswed. Investment income on
these comracis is soeountzd for wming de EIR method when accneed.

Investment income

Tivestment income on debt msrmments classified under eld o mandty mvestments asd murabala deposits are
aceauntad for on an effective inferest kasis,

Dividend ancomms

Dividend income on equity instruments classified nnder fair valve through statement of income (FVST) ireestments i
recognized when the right to receive payment is established,

Claims

Claums consist of amounts pavable to policyholders and third parties and related loss adjsiment expenses. net of
salvage and other recovenies, Gross outstending claims comprise the gross estimated cost of cleims imourred but mot
seffled ar the statement of Nusncial positon date wgether with related claimes handling cost=, shetber reported by the
imsured or nof. Provisions for reported claims ot paid a8 of the statement of financial posifion date are made on the
bazis of indidual case estimates. In addifion, a provision based oo management’s mdgment and the Company’s
privr experience @5 asimtained Tor the cost of senling claims curred but no reportesd including related clams
hawdling costs af the statensent of financial posiion date,

The oursanding claims are shown on & gross basis asd he related share of the reinsurers is shown separately, Further,

the Campany does nol disconnt its Babilicy for wpaid claims as substantially all claims are expected 10 be paid within
one year of the smtement of financial position date.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES - (continued)
dj The significant acconnting policies nsed in prepaving thess financial statements are set oui helaw (continoed)

Reinsurance contracts hekd

Reinsurance is distributed betweeen treaty, faculfative, stop boss and excess of loss reinsurance confracts, Comiracts
eniered mio by the Company with reinsurers under which the Company 12 compensated for losses on one or more
confracts issed by the Company and that mest the classification requirements for imsumnce contracts are classitied
a8 reinsurance contracts beld, Coutracts that do ool meet these classification requirements are classified as financial
assets. Insuance contracts entered mio by the Company under which the contract bolder is apother inserer (inwards
reinsurance] are inchided with insurance contractz, Anoasest or Lability is recorded in the stetement of finsmeial
position represenfing pavments doe from reinsurers, the slare of losses meoverable from remswrees s premyiums
due to remsurers. Amoiumts receivable from reinsurance 15 estimated in a manner consistent with the clam Lability
associated with the msored partizs. Reinsurance assets or linbilities are derscognised when the contractual nghts are
extimguished orexpire or when the contract i3 ransferred o another parmy,

An impairment review 15 performed af each reporimg date or more frequently when an indication of mmpaimment
arizes duning e reporting vear, Impaicment oconrs when obgective evidence exists that the Company may bt
recover outstanding amsounts under the ferms of tle coniract and when the umpact on the amonnts that the Congamy
will receive from the reinsurer can be measured reliably. The impairment boss i= recorded In the statememt of Income
as murred, Ceded reéinsupance arcangements & oot relieve the Company from it obligatons o policvholders.
Premmee: and clains oo assumed reinsurance are recognised as ineoine and expenses in the same manner as they
wiould be if the reinsurance were considered direct business, taking o account the product classification of the
reingured business,

Deferved policy acoiaisifion cosis

Commissions and other costs directly related to the acquisition and renewal of isurance contracts are deferred and
amortized over the erms of the msurance costracts ™ which they relate, similar 1w preminms earsed. All other
acguisition costs are recognized & an expense when incured. Amortization i3 recorded in the “Policy acquizifion
cozls” in the statement of income. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattem of consumption of
frure economds benefits embodied fo the asser are docounred Tor by chaiging tee amortization pened and are renated
a5 8 change in accounting esimae, An impairmest review s performed at each reporting date of more frequently
when an indicatson of mmpairment arizes, If the assumptions refating to otce profitsblite of these palicies are ot
realized, e amortization of tese cous could be accelerated and this may akso reguire additional impairment wile-
offs in the siatement of meome, Defered policy acquisition cost are alzo considered in the liability adequacy test at
each reporting date.

Linbility adequmacy fest

At each statement of fmancial position date, Hability adequacy tests are performed to ensure the adequacy of the
insurance coifracts Labilities net of related deferred policy acquisition costs. In performing these test: managenien
wees cwrrent bes estimates of futwre contraciual cash flows and claims bandling and adiministeaton expenses. Aoy
deficiency m the carmving amounts 15 momedistely charged 1o the statement of income by establishing & provisien tor
Ieses ansing from lability adequacy fests accordingly,

Receivables

Preminms receivable are stated ar gross written premiums receivable from msurance contects, less an albowance for
any uncollectible mounts. Prmiums and reinsurance balances eceivable are recopnized when due and measured on
imitial recogaition at the fair value of the consideration received of receivable, The carrving value of receivable &
reviewed for impaimment amnd whenever events or circumsiances indicate that the camying amount may not be
recovermble, the impainment loss is recorded in “Uher general and pdmimstrative expenses”™ m the statement of
income, Beceivable balances are derecognised when the Company oo longer controds the contractml nghrs that
comprize the receivable balance, which is normally the case when the receivable balance iz zold, or all the cash fows
attributahle o the balance are passed through 1o an mdependent third party. Recervables disclosed innote 5 fall under
the scope of IFRS 4 “Insurance contrasts™,
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES - (continued)
iy The significant acconnting policies nsed in preparing these financial statements ave set oud helaw {continoed)

Investiments
al Avwailable-for-sale imvestments

Available-for-zale financial essets are those non-derrvative financial assets that are pesther classitied as held for
trading or beld 1w maturty o boans ad recevables, por are designated at fair value through poofit or kess, Such
imvesuments are mitally reconded at cosi, being the fnir valee of the conzidemion given including transaction cosis
directly attnibutable to the acquisiton of the investment and subsequently measured at fair value, Comulative changes
in fair vahlse of ;uch investments are recopnized in other comprebensive income in the statement of compeehensive
imcome wder “Met chanpe in fwir value — Avmlable-for-sale investmenis”, Realived gains or losses on sale of ihese
investments are reported in the related staterments of income under “Fealized gam / [loss) on mvestments available
for sale investmants.

Dividend, cominizzicn ineoims and foreign currency gain'los on available-for-sale investments are recognized in the
related statements of moome or statement of comprebensive income - shareholders" operations, as part of the net
investment mcome ¢ loss.

Any sipmficant or prolonged decling in fair vale of available-for-sale investmenis i= adjusted for and reported in the
related statement of comprebensive income, a8 impairment charges, Fair valees of available-for-sale investments are
bazed on quoted prices for marketable secunties of estimated fap vahies, The fair valve of commission-heaning items
1= estumated bazed on discounted cash flows uzing commussion for stems with simelar terms and n=k charactenstics.
For vnquoted mvestments, far valoe i3 determoned by referoces to the markes valoe of 8 smuilar investment or whete
e fair values cannet be derved from active markets, they are determined nsing a variety of valstion techniques,
The inpuat to these madels 1= inken from obsermble markets where possible. bat where this 15 not feazible, a degree of

Judgment iz required mosstablishing fair values,

Reclassification:

The Company evaluares whether the abiliny and intention fo 221l 15 AFS finascial &s=ets in the near temm s sall
appeopriate. When, n rare circumstanced, the Company iz unable o rade these financial assem due o insciive
markets, the Compamy may elect o reclazsify these financial sssets if management hes the ability and mtention to
Isold the assets for the foreseeable future or until mateity, Keclassification to loas and receivables is permuted when
the financial asser meets the definition of Jnans and receivables and management has the infentiodn and ability fo bold
these azzets for the foresezabls future or until matnty. The reclessification to HTM s pernutted onkby when the entity
ha= the ability apd Wmiention © hold the financial asset wnnl matunty. For a financial asset reclassified out of the
avallable-for-zale category, the fair walve at the date of reclessification becomes it new amaortised cost asd any
previous gain of loss on that ssef that has been recognized in equity is amortised o peofit or kes over the remaining
life of the imestment using the EIR. Any ditference bebween the new amortized cost and the maturity amomt is alsoe
amortized over the remaming life of the asset vsing the Effectrve nterest Rate “EIR™. IF the asset 15 subsequently
determined o be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity iz reclassified 1o the statement of Mmoo,

By Held 2 FVSI

Investments in this category are classified if they are beld for rading or desspnated by mamagement as FVSI on mitial
recognition. Investments clasified as wading are acquired principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in
alvort e and ere recorded i the statement of financial positon ot foir valwe. Changes in fare valoe are recogaized in
ret rading iecomeloss.

An investment may be designated at FWVSL by the management, st mitial recognition, it it satisfies the cnteria fad
dowm by TAS 39 except for the equity mstmiments that do oot bave a quoted price i an active market and whose far

walues cannat be reliably measured.
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3. BIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES — (continued)
) Tle significant acconntng policie: wsed in preparing these financial statenwniz are set oul below {comtinned)

Tonvestments — (continued)
by Held as FVSI — {continued )

Investments at FWEI are recorded i the statement of financial position at fair velee. Changes o the fair value are
recognised in the starement of income for the vear in which it arizes, Transaction costs, if any, are mo added o the
fair walue measurement at minal recognition of FAVSL pvestments. Special conumisssson income and divedensd incone
on financial assets held az FWVSI are reflected as either rading income or income from FVSI fmencial mstruments in
thye statement of income,

Reclassification:

Ivestments at FWEL are ool reclassified subsequent to their inifisl recognition. except that non-denvative FVSI
insmument. other then those desipnaied as FVSI1 upon initial recognition, may be reclassified out of the FVSIL fair
vilue through the statement of income (1., trading} category i they are no fonger held for the purpose of being sold
or repurclased in the near tenm, and the following condifiom are met

® i the financial asset would have met the definition of loans and receivebles, if the fimancial asser had
oot been required to be classified as beld for tradiog ot mital recognstion, then it may be reclassified of
the entity bas the iotention znd- ability to hold the financial asset for the foresesable fisture or until
mahrity.

= I the financial asset would not have met the definiion of loans and receivebles, and then it may be reclassified
out of the wading category onby in ‘rare circumstances’.

¢y Held to mamidty
lvestments having fixed or defenminable pavments and fined matcy that the Company has the positive intention
and abulity to bold to matarity are classified as beld to matunty. Held to matunty investments are intially recognised
at fair valee including direct and - incrementnl iransechion costs and subsequenthy measzed ot amortised cost, les
provision for mpairment io valve, Amortized cost s caloulated by mkibg info account apy discount of premium on
acquisition wsing an effective yield basis. Aoy gain or loss on such investments 1s recopnised in the statement of
income when the investment is derecognised or impadred,

Reclassification:

Investments clpsaifisd az held to matonty cannot ordineniby be sold or recleesified without impacting the Company’s
abiity ® we this classification and canpot be designated a5 a bedged item with respect W comimission rate of
prepavment nsk, reflecting the longer-term nature of these investments.

However, sales and reclassifications in any of the followmg circumstances would not impact the Company”s shility to
wse This ¢ lagsification

# Sales or reclassifications that are 5o close to matunty that the changes i market e of commission would ot
have a significant effect on the fair value

& Eales of reclassifications after the Company Ias collected substantially all the assetz" origimal principal

& Zales or reclassifications atiributable 10 non-recurring isolared events bevoasd the Company™s control that could
oot have been reasonably aticipaied.

De-recognition of financial nstriments

The derscopnition of a financial instrumert takes place when the Company no kenger controls the contractizal rights
thar comprize the fnancial insrramens, which is pormally die case when the insmument 15 =0k, orall the cash flows
artributable ro the instrument are passed taough 1o an ixdependent thivd pacty and the Company has akso transferred
substantially all nisks and rewards of cwnership.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES - (continued)
i)y The significant acconnting policies nsed in preparing these financial statements are set ot helaw {continoed)
Oifsetting

Financial assets and financial labilities are offser and the et amount reprorted in the statement of financial position
only when there = 8 currently enforceable legal ot to offset the eoognissd amounts and there 15 e mntention to
settle oo o net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the linbility sinmltancousty. Income and expense 15 ot offzet m
the stateinent of comprelensive meome nnless required or permutted by ary accounting stamdard or mterpretation,

Trade date acconnting

All regular way purchnses and sales of Tinancial asgets are recognized " derecognized on the trade date (i.e the date
that the Company commits to purchase or sell the assets). Fegular way purchases or sales are parchases o sales of
financial assefs that mequee setilemet of assets within the me frame peremlly esmblished by regulation oo
comvention in the marker place,

Tmipaivment of fimancinl assets

The Company assesses, o epch reporting dave, whether ther is objective evidence that & financial asset or 8 growp of
financial assets 15 impaired. An impaimment exists if one or more events that bes cocnrred since the mibal recogrition
of the asser (an incurred “los event’), lias an impact on the estimared funire cash flows of the finakcial asser of the
groap of financial azsets tiat can be relmbly estimated.

Ewvidence of imypairment may meluda:

Significant financind difficulty of the issuer or debtor;

A breach of contract, such as a defauln or delingquency in pavmens;

It becoming probable that the ssuer or debtor will enter bankruptey or other financiad reorganization;

The dizappeamoce of oo sctive market for thet fionncinl asast because of fnaneinl ditficulties; or

Oserveble data indicating that there i a measurable decrease in the estimared fisture cash flow fioim a growp
of financial assets sioce the nitial recognition of those assets, althowsh the decresse cannot ves be identified
with the mdividunl fmancinl sesetz in the Company, including;

P Adverse changes in the payment sate of Bsuers of debiors in the Company; or

F  Mational or local economic conditions at the country of the Bswers that correlate with detaults on the essets.

If there i3 objective evidence that an impainment loss on @ financial asset exisis, the impaiment & determined as
follows:

= For assets carned af fair vakee, oopoirment i5 the significant or prolong declme in the fair vahee of the
finenicial asset.

¥ For assets carried ot amortized cost, mpamment 15 based on estumated fuhure cash flows that are discounted
ot the ongioal effective commmission mic,

Fou available-foc-sale finawcial msets, te Compuny assesses at cach eporting date whether there is objective
evidence that an mvestment or & group of iInvestmests i3 mpaired.

In the caze of dene instruments classified as available for sale, the Compatry assesses mdividually whether there i3 an
objective evidence of impaimeen. Objecive svidence may molods indications thet the bomower s experiencing
significant fospcial diffieulry, deloult or deloguency i special commmission meome o principal payvments, the
probabilicy that it will enter bankropicy or otler financial recrganization and where observable data indicares that
there 1= a measurable decrease in the estimated foture cash flows, sich as chanpes In ecomomic condiions that
correlate with defaulis, However, the amovnl recorded [or impaioment is (e comelanve koss messured a5 the
difference between the amortized cost and the current fair value les any impaimment loss oo that isvestment
previcusly moognized in the statement of neome and statement of comprebensive income. If. in & subssquent period,
the fair vahue of 8 debt ioserument increases and the incréase can be objecively relared o credit evem cccumng after
the impainvent loss was recognized in the statetnent of income and statement of comprehessive income, the
impamment loss 15 reversed through the statement of income and statement of comprebensive income.
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SALAMA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
{A Sawdi Joant Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES - (continued)
dj The significant acconnting policies nsed in prepaving thess financial statements are set oui helaw (continoed)

Tpairment of Anamcinl assets — (confinned)

Fow wguity mvestments beld a3 available-for-zale, o significant or profonged decline in farr value below it cost
represents objective evidence of impairmest. The impainment loss cannot be reversed through statement of Income as
long as the assel codfiovies o be récognised Lo amy increase i fair valee after impairment has been recorded can
only be recogrised i other comprehensive income. On derecogpition, asy cusmdative goin of bess proviows|y
recogrised in other comprebensive meome 15 ncleded in the statement of incomes under “Realized gam / (loss) on
investments available for sale investments.

The determination of what is ‘significant’ or “prolongsd’ requires judgement, A period of 18 months or longer is
considered to be profonged and o dechine of 25% from onginal cost 15 considered significant az per Company policy.
In making this judgment, the Company evaleates, smong other factors, the duration o extent 1o which the fair valoe
of an ivvestrnent 1= less than its cost.

In making an assessment of whether an investment in debi instrunent i5 impaired, the Compaty considers the factom
such as market's assessment of credibworthiness sz reflected in the bond yeelds, rating agencizs® assessment of
credibvnrthiness, coontry’s ahility to access the capital markets for newr debi issuance amd probability of debt being
restrctired, resulting in bollers suffering Ioses through volwitary or masdatory debt forgiveness, The amoumnt
reconded for impairment = the cumulatove boss measured as the difference berseen the amortised cost and the current
fair waloe, less any impairment loss on that mvestment previously reeognized m the statement of income and
statement of compreliensive ineoime,

Intangible sssets

Sepatately acquired intangible assers (menhon cateporyh are shown ot historical cost They lave a finme weful life
and are subsequent carried af cost less accumuolated amortization and imparment losses. The Compeny amortizes
intangible azsets with a limired wselul Life using sratghi-hine method over the follewing penods:

Softwars 4 years
Licenses 4 ycuis
Properiy and sqoipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost lzss accumulated depreciation and any imparment losses. Subsequent costs
are incloded in the asset’s carrving amowyt or recogmized &5 a separate asset, as appropriate, only when i iz probable
that future economic bepefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the fem can be
meazured reliably, All other repairs and mwinfenasce are charged W the shtement of income during the finaneial
perod in which they are noumed.

Land is not depreciated. The cost of other items of property end equipment is depreciaied on the straight line method
to allocate the cost over estimated w=eful Ivves, as follows;

Motor vehicls 5 vears
Furniture and fixtore 5 vears
Comiputers and office squipment 3 years

The assets” residual values and useful bives are reviewed st each reporting date and admsted it approprate. The
carrying valees of hese aszety are reviewsd for impalmment when event of changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrving valie may not be recoverable. [ any such indicatson exigts asd where the camying valses exceed the
estimated recoverable amount, the assets are written down to their recoverable amaount

Giaing and losses om dispecals are determinad by comparing the procesds with the carrying amonn and are inchided
in “Other meome, nef” inthe statement of moome.
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SALAMA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
{A Sawdi Joant Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES - (continued)
dj The significant acconnting policies nsed in prepaving thess financial statements are set oui helaw (continoed)

Impairment of non-financial neects

Assets that have s indefinite usefiol life — for example, land — are not subject to depreciation and are tested anmaally
for impaiement, Assets that are subject to depreciation are reviewed for impaiment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may ool be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recopnired for the amount by which the asset’s carying emomt exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount i= the higher of an asset’s fair valve less costs to sell and valee in use. For the
purposs of assessmg Impainment, nesets are grouped of the lowest levels for which there are separtely identifiable
cash lows (cash-generaning wins )

Employees benefit obligntions

The Compasy cperates an end of service benefit plan for its eneployees based on the prevaling Saudi Labor Lows.
Accmals are made at the preseot vahue of expected fukure povments in respect of services provided by the employees
up 1o the end of the reporting penod using the projected wnit credit method, Consideration is given to the expected
future wage and =alary levels, experience of employee deporiures and periods of service. Expected fomre payment
are discounted usmg market yields at the end of the reporting period of hgh-quality corporate bonds with ferms and
currencies that maich, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash owtflows, The bemefit pavinents obligation &
discharged o3 and when it falls due. Re-messupements [actuprinl pous’ beses) as a result of expenence adjustments
and changes m actuanial essumptions are recognzed in statement of comprebensive Income.

Fakat and income tax

The Company 15 subject to zakat in accordance with the mpulatons of the Geneml Awthonty of Zakat and Tax
{(GAZTY), Zakat B computed on the Saondi sharehiolders’ share of equity amd et income wsing the basis defined
under the Zakat regulations. Zakat 5 eccrued on a guarterdy basis.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution fo the Company's sharebelders §s recogiized a3 a Bahlity in the Company’s finsmscial
statements in the period m which the dvidends are approved by the Company's shareholders.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprize cash m band and balances with banks incleding MMursbaha deposits with less
e thiree months” matunty fom the date of acquisition

Casli Now statemen|

The Company’s main cash flows are from insurapce operations which are classified as cash How from opemting
activities, Cazh flows generated from investing sid financing activities are classifed sccordingly.

Foreign carrencies

Tramsaction in foreign currencies are recorded in Saudi Eivals af the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the
transaction. Mooetary asseiz and ligbilitles depominaied in foreign currencies are retransbied to Saudi Rivals at the
rate of exchanges prevailing at the statement of financial position dafe. All differences are taken 1o the statements of
income and comprebeisive income, Non-mosetary items that are measwed in teome of historical cost ina foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rate as at the date of the nftial transaction and are not subsequently
restated Forelgn exchange gains or loases on avallable-for- sale mvestments are recognized i “Chher income, net™ in
the statement of income and statement of comprehensive imcome. As the Company s foreign currency transactions
are primarily in S dollars, foreign exchange gains and bosses are not significant.
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{A Sawdi Joant Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

3, BIGNIFTCANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES — {contimed)
] The significant acconnting policies wsed in preparing these financial statements are set out helow (continned)

Operating segients
Aosepment 5 a distimpuishable componenst of e Company that iz engaged in providing productz oF services {a
business segment), which is subject to nsk and rewards that are different from those of other segments. For

management purposes, the Company i3 organized into business units based on thear products and services and has the
following reportable segovenis:

« [Medical provides compensation to policy bolders for expenses incumed in trestment of a disezse, illnezs or
nyury.
Motor provides coverage agamst bozses and liability related to motor vehicbes
Crther mehides property, marine, engineering, accident and liabifity rpd miscellansous categonies.

Oiperating segments are reporfed o & manner consistent with the itermal reporting peovided 1o the chiel operating
decizion-maser. The chief opersiing decision-maker, who iz responsible for alloceting resourves and asseszing
performance of the operating sezments, has been identified az the chief executive officer that makes strategic
decizions. Mo infer-segment transactions ocowred duning the vear,

Statutory reserves

In sccordanee with the Company’s by-laws, the Company shall allocate 20% of its net meoine from shareholders®
operations each vear to the stamtory reserve until it has built up a reserve equal to the share capital. The reserve = not
available for distribotion.

Fair valacs

The fair values of fisancal assets are based oo quated prices for markeable secumties or eanmated frir vadues. The
fair value of commission-bearing items 15 estimated based on discounted cash flow nsing comoussion for ilems with
simmlar terms and risk characteristics.

For financial assers where there s no active market, fair value is determined by reference o the market value of a
zimalar financial eszets or where the fair values cannot be dermved irom actve market, they are determined w=ing o
varety of valuation techniques, The inpwis of these models are taken from obsereable markst where posaihie, bt
where thiz iz o1 feasble, o degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values,

Accounts payable and accrwals

Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be peid in the fotre for goods or services received, whether billad by the
supplizr or not.

Provisiens

Provizicos are recognised when the Company has an obligation (legal or constructive as 2 resnlt of a past event, amd
it i3 probable thar an owttlosr of resources embodying economic benefits will be reguirsd to setile the obligatéon and a
relisble sstimate can be made of the amoumnt of the obligation.

Provisien for ontstanding clafms

Tudgmients by management are required o die esthmation of ansounts dne 10 policviolders and third pamies arlsing
fron elaims made wder msurance contracts, Such etimates are necessanly based oo assumptions about several
factors mvolving varyving degrees of judgment and unceramey and achual resuls may ditfer from mansgement’s
estimates pesulting i furere chenges in estanated Labiliies, The Compeny estonates itz clams based oo i3
experience of g insurance porfolin, Clames reaquiring court o arbstraiion decizions, i asy, are esimated
individually,
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SALAMA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
{A Sawdi Joant Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES — (confimaed)

dj  The significant acconnting policies used in preparing these financial statements are set ot belew (continned)
Provision for outsfanding clabms — (eomfinued)

Managemenl reviews its provisions for claims incurred, and claims inoorred but oot reported, on a monthly basis.
Ay difference between the provsions af the statement of financial posinion date aml senlements and provisions in
tlse following year 2 inclided in the sratement of imrance operations and accumubied surplus for that year. The
provision for cutstanding claims, 25 at 31 December, 15 also verified and certified by an independent acmary.

Premium deficiency reserve

Estmaton of the premmm deficiency 15 highly sensitive fo & number of sssumptons 2= to the future events amd
conditions, It iz based on expected loss ratio fof the uhexpired portion of the risks for wrtten policies. To armive at the
eatumate of the expected loss ratie, the achary conaiders the claims and premivms relaticaship which is expectad to
apply on month to month basis. Based on actuary’s suggestion, the maragemend bas wsed different possibilities for
projecting the expecied trends in [os ratio. The kev-assumpiion used by the management is thar past claims pattern
are stable and will continme in fstues.

Ceoing concern
The Company’s management has made an assessment of the Company®s ability o confinne as 8 going concern snd &2
satisfied that it has the resources o continue in bwiness for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, manesgement is mot
aware of any material vncerfainties that may cast significant dows vpon te Company's ability 1o confimse as & going
consern Therefore, the finasceal statementz continue 1o be prepaced on the goeing concem basis.
4. CASH AND CASHEQUIVALENTS

a)  Cosh and cosh equivnlents included in the statement of cosh Qows comprise e Tollowing:

Insurance operations

2019 2018
SO0
Bank Balance amd Cash 26834 #1792
Shireholders” operations
2019 20138
SR'008
Bank balances 157TT 5,077

) Term deposits
R e oy oalinon

TR 2018
SR 0400
Term deposits 155,258 141,134

vl o sickorzoid
2019 201%

SR000

Term deposits 100,201 L4, 379




SALAMA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
{A Sawdi Joant Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - (continued)

The term degosiiz are lseld with the comtmearesal banks and earn commizzion a1 madeer rates. These term deposie are
depominated m Saudi Arabian Bivels and have an origmal matunty of more than three-months and less than teelve-
montls, The caryiog amousts of tiess term deposits reazonably approximate their famr valees af the reporting dare.

& PREMIUMS AND REINSURERS' RECEIVABLE — NET

Recervables comprise amounts due from the following:

e 2008

SR
Palicybolders 118,649 171.520
Relted parties {note 22) - 21,551
Receivables from refnsurers 4,688 4,107
123,337 197,178
Prowizion for danbifnl recernvables (A7, 1305 {41,734
Premiums and veinsurers” receivable — net £, 207 155,444

Movement i provision for doubefil debis dunog (he vear was as follows:

g 2018

SR'000
Baknee at the beginning of the vear 41,734 4,238
Provision for the vear - 7,496
Reverzal of provizion {dl, il ) -
Balance at the end of the year 27,130 41,734

The ege anaby=is of vnimpaired premnums receivable arising froon msurance contracts is as follows:

Alvove three Alsove six
Up to three andap osly  less imniwelve Twelve menths

moniths muanths _ munths and above Total

SR 00
W19 41,594 23,367 14,290 6,947 B6, 207
LR 80067 36,875 33,161 £341 155,444

Past due but not impaired receivables are expected, on the basis of past expenence, to be fully recoverable. Tt s mot
the practice of the Company to obtain collnteml over receprables nnd the vast majority is, theretore, mnsecursd, In
respect of premiums receivable, dw five largest cusipmers” balances accomnted for approximately 24% of this balance
as gt 31 December 2019 {2018: 31%), Premiums recervable comprise o larpe oumber of customers and inswrance
companies all within the Kingdom of Sowdi Ambin,

6. DEFERRED POLICY ACQUISITION COST

209 2008

SR
Ralance at the beginning of the vear 14,135 14,514
[esirred for the vear 11,919 33550
Charge for the year (28,031) {33.931)
Balance al (he eml of Tl year 9,033 14,135
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SALAMA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
{A Sawdi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

T, CLAIMS INCURRED

2018 2018
_SR™00 SRTHE
Gross cluims paid S01,310 STE, 700
Girea s outzeanding claims at the end of the yvear (zee note (i) helow) 169,539 210.260
GT0.850 TE7.050
Girgss outstanding ¢laims ar the beginnmg of the wear (270,261 (177,778}
Gross claims icarred 460,590 609,274
Reinsuranc e recoversss (31, 848) { 1B L54)
Reinsurers’ share of outstanding claims at the snd of the wear (zes note (i (Z1018) (23.783)
below)
(51 H64) {41937)
Redmsurers’ share of mitsmnding claims at the beginning of the year 13 7% 11444
Reinsurers’ share of claims (259,083} {30493)
Met clams incarred 431,516 578,781

) Oress curstanding dalms as et 31 December 2019 mxlude provisson for IBWR amounting o SR 169,539
thouzamsds (2018 SR 210 a0 thousands ),

(i} Substardially all of the amowts due from reinsirers are expected © be received within twelve montss of the
reporting date. Reinarers slare of onistasding claims are calenlated in proportion to the related risk distrdwstion

patiern
CLAIM DEVELOPMENT TABLE

The follkewing reflects the cumulative incumed clams, inchiding both claims notitied and iscurred but not reported
for gnch successive nooident veor of ench finnmcinl position date, together weith the commuiative payments to date. The
development of imumnce liakilities provides a measure of the Company's abdity o esfimate the uliimate value of the
claims.

The Company aims (o maintam adequate reserved in respect of i3 insirance bousiness i order o proteet agains
adverse future clims experiesce and developiments. As claims develop ard the ulimae cost of claims becomes more
certnin, adverse claime expenences will be elimmated which regults wn the relesse of reserves from earlier aocsd et
years, Io order to mamntain adequate reserves, the Company transfers much of thes release to the current accsdent year
reserves when the development of claims B less matire and there is much greater uncertainty atached 1o the ultimsate
coFt of chnina.
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{A Sawdi Joant Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

T, CLATMS INCURRED - {continued)
CLATM DEVELOPMENT TABLE - {contimned)

11 DECEMBER 2010

015 &
Accldent year earlier Wwie AT 2018 208 Total
SR 000
Estmmate of ultimate clams cost:
AT the end of accident yenr 0323 32562 0 S1XLER0 a0UT00 453979
Oine veas later 278,305 AnoDE2 S17, bk ER0 83T
Trwvo years later 264,510 180,011 E16,580 -
Thres vears later 41611 196,209 -
Four years later 261,882
Churrent estimate of cunmlative claums 20 RE2 196,209 516,589 SHO,B3T 453,979 1.119,4%
Cumulative paviments to date (260,993} (291055) (503,655 (544.846) (343408 (1,949,.957)
financial position
31 DECENMEBER 018
014 &
Aecident year eatier 2015 2006 2m7 2018 Total
SR "0
Estimate of ultimate claims cost:
At the end of aceident vear 282N 293,230 342562 k12,589 a09, 709
O vear later 270018 2TR.305 306,082 517,904 .
T venrs Infer 62,252 204 514 280211 -
Three vears later 235504 242611 - -
Four years later 111040 . - - -
Current eatimate of cunmlative claims 210040 243 611 280,911 51T 900 4l Fog 1862171
Curulative payments to date (209.496) _{240033] _ (270.359)  {490.788) (441.013)  (1651.911)
Ligbility recognised o statement of
financial position 1544 1,558 10,352 2712 168,696 210,260
£ INVESTMENTS
Inwestmeasts e ¢laggified as followa:
Insurance operations
201% 2018
b2 111
- Held a5 FV5I 28,920 39942
- Held to maturity 121,524 132,669
Total 147 450 1734611
Shaveholders” operations
01w 0IE
SR'000
- Held ss FWSI 46,503 G790
- Available for sale 1923 1923
- Held to maturity 26,768 35488
Total 75,284 106,201




SALAMA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

{A Sawdi Joant Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

B INVESTMENTS- Continued
a) Fvsl

Movement in beld s FVST investiment balance is o follows:

Opening balance
Purchased during the year
Disposals during the vear

Clanges in fair value
Cloging balnnce

Dietails of held as FVEI investment balance is as follows:

Tnbs in local motey marker funds
Ulnits in local egniry funds
Local DPM money amrket securities

Opening balince
Disposals darng the year

Clanges in fair value

Cleaing bhalance

Dietails of held as FVEI investment balance is as follows:

Ulnits 1o local sgunity funds

Ulnits in local real estate fusds

Local “DPM* money market securities
Local "DPM* squity securities
Foreign “DFR® equiry securiries
Total

1]

Insurance operations
R b 2018
- L. ER.'m . LR
30942 250,332
72,8330 -
(83.434) (211.655)
19,347 38,677
{34213 L2465
25924 30,942

Source of Fair
Value Inlw 2018
SR M
Cragted 3,127 -
Hai - 68 T,
B A, i
15,926 38,942
Shnrcholders’ operations
{1l ) 2OHR
SR
a8, 79 19508
[28.986) (129919}
A0 804 &5 0
6,789 1,640]
46,593 6E, 790
Source of
Fuir Value —i™ -
SR*000

MAWES - L9
HaW** 10,041 L
MAVE® 15,705 23 7446
Cmated 20,847 19,560
Cuated = : I-_&L'I'E.ﬁ.
46,593 68,70




SALAMA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
{A Sawdi Joant Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

B INVESTMENTS — (contfimed)
bl Available for sale investments

Mlovemenl ln available-for-sale bmvestinenl balance is as follows:

Sharebolders” operations
2019 2018
SR
Opening balnce 1,923 1,223
Cloaing balance 1,923 1823

{1} Unguoted available for zale mvestment, heving a carmving valoe of SR 1,923 thousand (2018: SR 1923
thousand) are messured af cost as its fair valee cannot be reliably measwred due to the absence of active market
and wnavalability of observable market prices for similar instruments,

o Held to npndarily oy esioienis
Movewent In beld to maiurity nvestment balance is as follows:

Insurance operations

019 2018
SR04
Opening balance 132,669 139,832
Purchased during the year S0, 004
Manired during the yveor (6, 9259) {7,000
Commisseon from HTA mvestments 3,784 .
Amoriization of hekd (o mamnty investments - 163
Closing balance 121,524 132,660
Sharebolders” operations
e 2018
SR
Opening balnce 35,488 35,604
Purchased during the year 4982
Matured durmg the year (15,125
Commisgion from HTM mvestments 1,582
Amprization of held o mamnty invesonents (55 i11d)
Closing balance 26,768 35488

¥ Managed at the discretion of a local regulated finemcial nstitution (“DPM L

AN Met Asset Valee as announced by assed manaper.
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SALAMA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

{A Sawdi Joant Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

2. PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER ASSETS

Inswrance operations

2019 2L
SR
Prepiyiments 1204 . Srle |
Advances to staff 1508 2155
Accried commisdon 178 224
Orilser receivables 7. Lk L6604
11,173 14,254
Shareholders” operations
Inle 2018
SRD00
Oither receivables 186 03
1. FROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT- NET
Mator Furnifure  Compuier Total Total
Viehicle and fixtures Eguipment 2019 HME
SR'D00
Cist;
1 Jarsary 150 17489 14,253 3 19,246
Additions - T4s 1582 162V 12676
Dhispasnls (=) (54) :
31 December 6 18,234 16,165 34,495 I
Aoy Lated Depreciation:
1 January | 8384 9% 174063 14315
Charge for the year 1% 1387 1666 £.042 3148
Disposals (54} - - 54 =
31 December i) 10,741 11,671 11,451 17,463
Het book value
31 December 2019 = TA93 4,494 11044 -
31 December 2015 Th Q105 5278 14,459
1. INTANGIBLE ASSETS - NET
Soflware 2014 2018
T
Cost:
1 Janueary RIS -
Additions 835 8015
31 December HA%0 BOl5
Accumalated Depreciation:
1 January (B58) .
Charge for the year (1588) (358)
31 December (2,3406) (H5E)
MNel book value
31 December 2019 6,304 =
31 Drecember 2018 - 157
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SALAMA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
{A Sawdi Joant Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

12. LEASES
111 Right of nse assets
Hie
SR
1 Janary J601
Additions during the year 2005
Deepreciation charge for the year {5.005)
Termunations (L575)
Bl ook value sl 31 December 26,930
The depreciation expense was charped to the statement of income within general and adnupistrative expenses.
1LI Lease liability
The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease lmbilities was 4. 4%,
e
SR
Lesz than one year 4.134
Omie year to five vears 12,373
More than five vear 7,196
Total lease linbility 13,703
Total interest expenas on leaze liabilities foe the vear was SR 1,521 thowsanda.
13, TECHNICAL RESERVES
13.1 Net ontstanding claims and reserves
Met outstanding claims and reserves compose of the following:
HUL] 2018
SR
Cutstanding claims 38053 58,370
Claimes meurred but mot reporfed 130,886 L5 1,850
Premuurm deficiency reserve 9.782 3,083
Other technical reserves 6.259 6,375
185 580 221718
Less:
- Beinsurers” share of outstanding claims (8.745) {13.318)
- Beingurers” share of claims mcutred but not reporied (12,278 | | {10487}
(21.018) {23.785)
Met outstanding clains and reserves 164562 197535

i



SALAMA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
{A Sawdi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

13. TECHNICAL RESERVE — (continuel)
13.2 Movement in upearned premimms

Movement in unearmesd premimmns compnise of the following:
Year ended 31 December 20015

Gross Relisurance Net
SR
Balance at the beginning of the yvear IR7.093 {13,13%) 173,954
Preminum written durmg the year 503,504 {40 305} 454,100
Premumim earned during the vear (360,919 A0, 586 (520.333)
Balanceat the end of the vear I26TH (21 958) 207820
- renringen 3] Decombee SIS
Gross Rem=zurance Met
SR
Balance at the beginning of the year 312,604 (B 289 I3 TH
Premivm writtenn during the vear 734,982 (14,643} TiD339
Premumim carned during the vear (770.498) 20,393 730,105}
Balance ar the end of the year 287,093 (13,1349 173,954
14. STATUTORY DEPOSIT
2010 2013
SRy
Stwuiory deposi 37500 25,000
A7 S0 25,0400

As required by Saudi Ambian Insurance Begulations, the Company bas deposied an additional % of s pasd up

capital equivalent to SR [2.5 million 1o reach to a total amount of SR 37.5 million (2018; 5B 25 million) in 4 bank

dezignated by the Saudi Arabian Monetary Authorty (SAMA™)Y Accmed mncome on this deposst 1= payable to

E—ﬁ;m smnting o 3R 3.3 million (2008 SR 2.7 million) and this deposit cameot be witlsinmwn withowt approval
SAMA.

15, COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

4. The Company”s commitments ayd contingencies are a5 follows:

2014 2018

SRMe0
Letters of guarantee in favour of non-govermment costoners Tkl FOH
Letiers of puaraptes in favour of GAZT 9504 9,500
1020 10,2040

b.  The Compamy 15 subject to legal proceediogs m ihe ordinary course of business. Thers was no change in the status of
begal proceedings a5 dischosed a1 31 December 2015,

¢ The Company s bankers have given gnaranfees (o pon-goverionsit customers amounting o SR 0.7 million {20018: SR
(T milEoa) in respect of motor meoruce and 1o General Authority of Zakat and Tax smountigg o SR 9.5 million
(200E: 8K 2.5 million} m respect of zakat essessments for years 2008 to 201 2.
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16, ACCRUALS AND OTHER LIABILITIES

019 2018
SR
Aecmied expenses 11.31% 4 838
Pavables to brokers and ngents 8276 LB, 445
Other payables 3032 25,896
2R 62T 52,17%
17. UNEARNED REINSURANCE COMMISSION
201 2018
SR
Balance at the beginning of the vear 1543 2244
Commission received during the vear 6,511 8,618
Commisson camed during the year (5953) {317
S400 2,543
15, OTHER TECHNICAL RESERVES
i L 2B
SRDb
Catastrophe reserve 1,00 274
Diata deficiency maeme 3562 1,708
Reimurance accmal reserve 1,593 2,393
6,150 6,375

19, EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

Accmals are made in accordance with the actuarial valoation ander the projected amt credit method wiale the benetst
payments obligation is discharged a5 and when it falls due, The amouats recopnized in the satement of finacial
position ad movemnent in the obliation during the vear based on its present vahie is ad follows:

18,1 The amounts recognized in the statement of financial posifien and movement in the obligation during the
wear based om its present value is as follows:

mlg. - T . znjs
SR"Di
Present value of defined benefit obligation 8688 2,541
19,2 Movement of defined benefit obligation
2019 208
SR00
Opening babinee 8941 T.262
Clerge 1o aratement of inemse il | 1,37%
Charge 1o statement of other comprehensive income 1LETD {1.07%
Paviment of benefits durng the vear (3,352) 1615)
Clesing balasce 9,688 B.041
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1%. EMPLOYEE BENEFTT OBLIGATIONS — jcontimued)
143 Beconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation

21 2008
_SR*000
Opening bakipce 8941 4,262
Current service costs 1058 1,111
Flnemelal oo 262 2632
Actaarial loss from experience adjustments 1879 {1070
Benefits paid dunng e vear (3,352) 6L 5]
9,688 8,941

19,4 Principal acfusrial assumpiions

The following range of significant sctuanel essumptions was vsed by the Company for the valuaton of defined
benefit obligation lahility:

2019 2018

Valuation discount rate 1.8% 3.6%

Expecied rate of merease in salany level across different age bands Lo%s L.O0=y

The mnpact of changes in sensiivities oin present value of defined benefir obligation is as follows:

Walueton discount rate 19 018

SAR"BOO SARD00

Incrense by 1% (5BT) (+19)

- Decrease by [% ik 404
Expecied mie of merease in salary level across different age bands

- Increase by 1% 674 457

- Decreaze by [% (603 (420

The pvernge duration of the defined benefit plan obligation ot the end of the reporting periesd 15 5 vears,

0. FATRVALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair valee s the price that would be received to sell ao-aszet of paid o transfer & lability in an orderly transaction
betwoen meacket participants of the messurement date. The fair value meeaqurement is bazed on the presumpiion that
the ramsaction takes place sither:

- imthe accessible principal markes for the azset or Liability, o

= inthe absence of o prancipal masket, 0 the mest advaninge: aeceszsible market for the asset or Labilioy

The fair valnes of oo-balance shest financial inswruments are oot significantly different from their carrving ameommsts
inclnded in the fsancial satement.

Determdnation of Fair value and Fadr value bierarchy
The Conrpany uses the followang bicrarchy for detenmining and disclozing the fair valoe of finascial mammuments;

Level 1: guoted prices m active markets for the same or identical instmement that an entity can sccess at the
mensurement date;

Level 2: quoted prices: in active markets for sinular aszets and labilities or other valuation techniques for whick all
significant imputs are based oo observable market data; and

Level 3:valuaticn technigues for which any sipnificant input 15 not based on cbservable markest data.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

0, FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — (continued)

a. Carrying mmennls and faie valme

The follwing wble shows the carning amount and fair vahes of finenceal assets end financial lisbilitses, meluding
i levels mi the Bur valve hierarchy for financial istnonents measored at fGic value, T does nol inckide fir value
information for fisancial assets and finaoceal liabilities not meagared at fair value if the canving amoust &5 a

reasonable approcimation to i value,

Insmweance Operations Fair value
Level 1 Level?  Leveld  Tatal
SR
31 Decembar 2019
Financial azsets measured ai fair value
- Investments held as FWSI 3,127 21700 15926
3,127 127 25926
Financial assets nof mensured ot fair valoe
- Held to mamieiry invesimeems 131,524 131,524
= 111,524 121,524
Insumpce Opemtons Fair vale
Level 1 Level2 ~  Lewell Totat
SR000
3l December HLE
Financial assers measured at fair value
- Investments held as FWSI - 35947 39,942
- Jenaz 39842
Financial assets not measured at fair value
- Held 1o minturisy investmenis 132,668 132,669
- 132,669 132,669
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20, FATR VALUES OF FINANCTAL INSTRUMENTS — (continued)

Shareholders” Operations Fair value
Levell Level 2 Level 3 Tuotal
SR
31 December 2019
Financial aseeds measured at falr valae
- Investments held az FVSI 20,847 25,746 = 44,593
20,847 25746 - 46,595
Financial assets not measared af fair valne
- Held 1o miatupiny investme s - 16,768 - 26,768
' ; 26,768 X 26,768
Shareholders” Operations Far vahue
Level L Lewel 2 Level 3 Tatal
SE000
31 December M1
Financinl nssets measured at fair value
- Investments heid as FVS1 35,046 33,744 - 68,790
35,046 33,744 a G, 700
Financial assets not measared at fair value
- Held 1o mafurisy investosmis - 15,458 - 35 4E8
- 15,488 - 3 4ER

1. OPERATING SEGMENTS

Oiperating segments are identified oo the basis of intemal reports about compenent of the Company that ere regularly
reviewsd by the Company s Board of Directors i their fopction az chief speraing decision maker m order 1o allocate
resourees To the segments and (o azsesst its perforimance.

Transachions hetwesn the operating segments are on nommal commercil terms and conditions. The revenue from
external pariies repotted w the Board 15 measured in & manner conzistent with that in fhe imcome s@Ement. Segment
assets gnd linbilines compnise operating assets and Hlahilities.

There have been no chasges o the basis of segmentation or the measurement basizs for the segment profit or loss
since 31 December 2018,

Segment assets do ool include cash and cosh equivalents, short term deposits, net premiwms and reinsurers”
receivable, nef, prepayiments and other receivables, amount due from a related party, investments, furnirues, fitings
and office cquipmest Accordimgly, they are mcluded i usallocated sssets. Sepment liabilites do not include
polevholders” chims, reimsumoce payables, peomools apd other poyables and emplovess” end of service iemnities,
Accordingly, they are inclisded in unallocared liabilities,

These unallocated aszets and labilities are not reported 1o chiel operating decision maker under related segments and
are monitored on a centrdzed basis.
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21. OPERATING SEGMENTS — (confinued)

The =poen mformation provided v the Company’s Boand of Diredors for the reportable segments i the
Compary's tofal asseis and Liabilities 91 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, in 1zl revenses, expenses. aml

et income for the vear then ended, are as follows:

Axoal 3] December 20019

Insurance operations
Imsurance Shareholders®
Medical Motor Dribess operaiions operations Total
SR MM

Aszels
Reinsurers” share of unearned
PECIIEES - 1,103 5,758 21,858 21,858
Reinsurzrs” share of outstanding
claims - - B.745 8,745 - B.745
Reinaurees” shave of claims Inensred
but mot reported - 10,948 1,325 12,273 12,273
Deferred policy poguisition costs 3213 4,602 1,197 9,033 2033
Umalbocated asacts 472 236 IR 0G 690,312
Total Assels 54,145 A 742,221
Liabilities
Unearmed premiumns 59,065 161,021 L 119,678 119678
Ulisearned rainsirmicee COoBumEgion - 1,852 1,544 3401 3401
Cnristanding claims 14,104 11,974 12475 38,933 38,953
Claims menred but oo repored 18,306 111510 2,11 130,586 130,586
Premimn deficiency reserve 9 13k - 544 Ll ) 4. Te2
Other technical msepves LE04 3661 100 5,259 - 6,259
Unalbocated Liabilities and surplis ?_3?3_![_!_? 13.4&9 l_zl.Tﬁﬁ
Tolal Liabiliibes 511,966 1RASD S40.425
Shareholders” Equity
Share capital - 250,11 250, (upl)
Senstony reserve - 503 S0k0S
Accumulated Losses - (52,407) (52.40°7)
Total Shareholders' Equity - 202,59 202,596
Re-messurement reserve of defined
benefit oblipations — relaed o
INsuEANCe operations [ RoAbNy - (R}
Total Equity (500) 202,506 201,794
Total Liabilities and Equity 811,166 231,058 742,221




SALAMA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
{A Sawdi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)
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21. OPERATING SEGMENTS — (confinued)

As ot 31 December 2018

Insurance operations
Insurance  shachelders'
Adedical Motor ihers operations operations Total
ER"DM
Asnpfs
Beinsurers” share of unearned
premiums . - 13,139 L3139 - 13139
Rezinsurers” share of outstanding
¢laings - - 13,316 (3318 - 13316
Reinsurers” share of claims Incurred
but mot reportsd . B.459 1,998 LD 46T - 10467
Deferred policy acquisition costs 5200 9,867 067 14,135 - 14.135
Unnllocared assets L 230436 H3n 319
Total Assets H47 040 230,434 BR7.376
Linbilities
Unearned pramnime 59379 218,379 B335 287083 - 28T
Uearned reirsiramee conisis€nn £ = 3 543 .t B ] 5 2543
Dutsianding clains 16706 24.87H 16,786 38370 . 38370
Claims incurrzd bt oot reported 103598 135,574 2618 151,890 - 151 80
Prepuum deficiensy reserve Aa0Ed = = 5083 = S0R3
Ohier technical reserves 239 3,708 274 6375 = G373
Unallocated Linbilities and surplus 59, ThS 22447 112.232
Totnal Linbilitics 60l 139 22447 G23.580
Shareholders” Equity
Share capiral - 250,000 2500000
Stanmory reserve - 5003 5003
Fotmmed camimgs - 7,708 7,708
Total Shareholders’ Equity - 262711 262711
Rz-mensurement reserve of defined
benefit obligations — related o
mMSUARCE Operatons 1.e - 1079
Total Equity 1078 262.711 263700
Total Liabilities and Equity GO 21E 285 158 237376
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21. OPERATING SEGMENTS — {contined )

REVENUES
Tndividnal
Laigs
Melekriin

Sl
Wery Smmall
{drees premiwms wiitben
Beipnerages premiimis exded
Laocal
Fomaign

Emcess of loss expenses

Lacil
Forsign

Met preminms written

Changee m smsamed premmume, na
Mot prembms earned
Reinsirases conunision

Oither underwniiing ineoine

TOTAL REVENUES

IMDERWRITING COSTS AMDENPENEES
Gipose claime paid

Reisnreis’ slare of cladms paid

MWer claims pakd

Changes m outstnnding clauns, nel

Changes m clanes inenmed bk wof reposted, aet
Net rlnims inewrred

Changes ; gremnimn deficieney reeres

Changes m other reelmical ressrves

Paliey acqpiEtion emts

Oither nnderamimng expesacs

TOTAL UNDERWRITING COSTS AND EXPENSES

NET UNDERWRITEN G INCOME

OTHER OPERATING (EXFENSES) INCOME
Gieneral md sdnrindstative expenses

Tnvestnuest moame

Commissan oo held 1o mahmty invesimems

Unsealized gain on myebneals

Reversal of provisicn foo doubtbl debis
Cither e oine

TOE T Nl MSES

KET LOSS FOR THE YEAR BEFORE ZAKAT
Faloat
NET LS FOR THE VEAR

Mot loas for the year atiribuiable to fusurance operations
Mot loss for the year amibutalile to the sharehalders®

47

For the year emded 31 Decesnber 2019

Medionl M-u'Inr_ o Cribiers Toiul
ST HH)

T2 113800 3,187 213,118
52,058 43 567 4,8 a1l
13,628 TH,031 7,837 08,10
16368 10l 2174 ek e ]|
54,280 14,279 E18 49,577

123256 360,344 19,502 503,504
(a1} [T

(36,059) | (12.555) (45,614)

T a0E)  (13.36) (43,305

- (234) {230 {40
(13} 4927 (1AE1) (158715
o) GMSl) sy (16339
113,333 319,126 5405 437,864
L 66,683 (%59 66,134
113,643 ELLE] LY 4540 BlEN
5 T 00H 388 59053

2416 1214

113,43 ELL I PR f.4011 LIPS L3
131,820 ELS ] s 01,520
e ] (2T A458) (2ALF) (3848
124,564 343,848 1,060 d6D, 471
{2.602) {12,904) B0 {14,844)

7,008 (3,171) 154 (23,1110
120,670 209,772 1,574 431,518
4,155 4 4,60

{10 - 83 {100

15,011 19,050 190 28,031
11,434 0,134 bt ] 21,344

151,720 328,086 e 488,475
(FEA7T) 62,037 135 26,090
(L0330

4,888

5366

3,368

4604

_ Lol

(R AT

(4,115

{00

(115

(63,115
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

21. OPERATING SEGMENTS — (confinued)
Far the vear ended 31 December 2008

Bledical Mntor Others ‘Total
S8
EEVENTES
Tndividans] 27,056 183, 14a! 9,138 o i
Large 48,799 214,451 7 G IT1,165
Malrnn 12,133 4485 2,88 & 50T
Emall 23158 130257 3,348 158, 7908
ey Sl W5l L1 106 B 152
Oross preaitits widten 119076 2 ATE 23,407 TH REZ
Remsimance preinnims cedad
- Local =] : (953} {953 |
- Foreign -1 {1, E%5) LIS 795} 23,6900
- R ] (16, T4E} [34,643)
Excess of loss expemses . sarmnre S
- Loml - CX2Th (2¥0y {5570
- Foseign (4429 (14 85Th {1322 [22.438) |
4425 170140 (1252 (22,8973)
Net premimns writien 114647 367,578 R GET
Changss m mearid preivis, pes 29850} 68,513 3 39 765
Nt prembuns ear il B4.706 637,153 5,130 727008
Pt HLCE SOk ' - 1,185 5152 6,317
Oiber mderviiling ineome 2 5,184 S 5,184
TOTAL REVENUES B4, 796 F43,53] 10,232 T3, 610
INDEEWRITING COSTS AND EXPENSES
Gross clauos paid 38,152 J15,616 Tz 376,790
Rempimers” share of ¢hins paxd (1386} (3, 540 {3218} (18,1540
Nt chlings paidl 52,766 S0, 05T 1,503 558,836
Changss m ooistendiog, claies, net 971 1 EXEY] D518
Changzs m claims mewred bat not reporied, et 4 250 450 5T} 10, 6
Ned clalngs Incuwrred BE 223 ILIk G52 1,403 3TE, ME]
Choangzs m premm deficienoy msemves 5083 [, Ay - 2 1m
Changzs m other bechmral resemves i 1488 4 2 ek
Palicy mequosition costs islg 35,771 2818 33931
g1 1B A 250 14, TR5
RAAET RRER 4 Rl T T4
NET UNDERWRITING INODME e 80538 5471 P55
DTHER OFERATING (EXFEFSES) / INCOME
Allowancs for doubifis debd (74
Giemeral and admmistmative sxpenes 91,897
Tnvve sttt e come 7.7
Uhreakzed pan on vt 4,055
Qther meome 5,736
MET INCOAIE FOR THE YEAR BEFORE ZaKAT 17,752
Zaknt (17, MK
NET INCOAME FOR THE VEAR 11.78:
Net income for tie vear ativibutable (o msemnce operations (1,45
Net imcome For tae vear afributable to the sharehalders’ 10343
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

1I. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

Reloted parties represent major shareholders, directors and key management personne] [Key Management Personnel
xludes all directors, execobive and nonexecutive, and ssuior mansgsment] of the Compeny, and compapes of
which they are principal owpers and any other énfities controlled, joindly controlled or significantly influenced by
them. Pricing policks and terms of these tmmactons are approved by the Company™s management and Board of
Directors, The llowing are the detmls of the major reisied pary trsactions  during the vear amd the relaiesl

balances:
Ampunt of franssctions
Natare of For the year ended 31
transnctions D cember Balance af 31 December
Enfities_controlled, joniy 2019 2018 2019 2018
controdled oy significanty SR
imfaenced by relafed
partics
Tageer Co, iarfiliane) Fremmm Wrimen A8, T1Z 0,778
Paynmemis and ¢ laimes paid - (&6 64} = 20, 484
Chainman of the Board Premium written 33 35
Paymeents and olaims paid (171}
RBent paid - 3025 - 25
Rusd Global Commpaiy Premium writien Ay 142
Paymends and claims paid - (63} - 74
Al Firdous Group Co, Premim writhen Tt 1652
Paymeents and ¢ Laims paid - (S21) - THE
Jabal Edsas Ear, Commizsion paid - L1l
Buent paid 4.114 - - -
Tajeer International Co, Services received S573 4,304 - -
Coneord Insrance and K p bt
Ren=zumnce Brokerage 3561 2008 -
Ewwder Pro Services received Ex HIE
; Investments in BPM and
e mtal funds (105,985) . . | 59,790
Rusd Capatal Investments n mutual funds - - - T.71l6

*As al 24 July 2019 certain due from refated parly balances bave been reclassified from related party balances 10 premium’s
receivables due 1o the fact thar the previmes charrsan of Salama Company has due from balances throwgh the related companies as he
holds the same post sz a chairman in the mention related party companies. Accordingly, the balances as of 31 December where
traisferred and nchsded within premivms receivahble,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)
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12, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES — {contimisd)
The compensation of key management personnel during the vear is as follows:

o9 018
_'se0 -
salares and other allowancss 366 4,227
End of sepvice indemnities 1420 367
1,786 4,504
Fenumeration to those charged with governance — Board of Directors 186 3,031
Bemuneration 10 those cliarged with governance — Board Commifiess - -
1846 A0l
13, FAKAT
a. Charge for the year
The current vear provizion is based on the following:
019 2018
SR s
Equity 62,711 252,366
Clpening provision and adjustments 100, D58 5, 596
et book value of long term assste (93,7400 (93378
100,059 315,584
Adjusted moome for the vear 53,774 30, 8
Eakat base 115185 245,893

The differences berween e lnaocial and the Zakatable resultzare mamly diee to cenain sdnsiments in scondince
with the relevant fiscal regulations,

Muovewenis in provision during the vear

2w 2018

SR04
Balance ot the begmnmg of the vear 19,761 LB, 155
Charge for the year O (Ml O, (00
Paid during the yvear LLER ] 4 478}
Belance ot the end of the year 12,131 12,761

b Status of Zakal assessments

The Company kas filed its 2akat declarations for the period from 16 Moy 2007 10 31 December 2008 thoough 200 8
which are still ioder review by dhe GAZT and no assessments has been finalized

Dearing 2006, the Company received zakat assessments for the years ended 31 December 2008 through 2012 whers
GAZT demanded an additional zakat and withholding tax Lability of 5R 137 millian in cespect of thase vearz The
Company has filed en chjection agpinst those assessments and the mansgement = confident of a favorable outcome.
In this regard, The Commpany bave zsved a ke of guarantee amowring o SR 25 mallon in faveur of GAZT,
Further, the Company kaz hooked an additeonal liabiliny of SR 4.4 millicn for withholding 1ax im the stafement of
income and S 4 million for zakat for prior years in 2016, During 2019, the Company submitted an objection 1o the
seftlement comnirtee amd The sertlement committes did mot decide o dare.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

14, SHARE CAPITAL

The authonzed and issued shere capital of the Company 15 SR 250 million divided st 25 million ordisary shares of
SR 10 each.

15, CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Objectives are set by the Clompaiy 1o maitain healthy capital satios i opder to suppoet its bistiness objectives aml
maxnmize shareholders” value.

The Company mansges ik capital requrements by assessing shortfalls between reported and required capital kevels
on & regular basis, Adjestments (o current capital levels are made m fight of changes in market conditions and risk
characteriztios of the Company's activities. In ceder o maintain or adjest the capital strectee, the Company may
adpast the amount of dividends pasd to shareholders or issue shares,

In the cpmion of the Board of Directors, the Compauy bas fully complied with the externaily imposed capital
requirements during he repored finsncial period.

26, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Insurance operations

e 2018,
SR (MM

Emplovees’ costs 58,154 5B, 754
Feent related expense T.553 7489
[nformation technalagy i, 002 T 4n%
Training and development 366 a7
Depreciation and amortization {see note 108& 11) 6,730 4,00
Travelling e 862
Commeication 2,342 1551
Prmting and stationary 1,168 1,755
Fee and subscriptions 1 243
Llikities 32 259
Bepair fmd maintenance 1,016 G40
Audit apd professional fess E152 1,283
Marketing and adverizeient B3T 2,220
Others R44 6,530

SOA0E RE.493

Shareholders’ Operations

2019 ID1E

SR b
Board sitendance fee (se i a below) 133 2,430
Committes sxpenses (zee note b below) 434 At
Other= A7 373
38 3,404

a) Board attendasacs fees represent allowwances for artending board meetings and sub conumnities meetings.

b} Committesr expenses inclisde fres of non-board memberz for attending committes meetings and other
related sub-commities expenzes,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

7. (LOSE) / FARNINGS PER SHARF
{Loas) / Eamings per share for the wear has been caleulated by drviding the net (loss) / meoome for the year by the

weighted sverage mumiber of Bsved and oustanding shares for the vear,

I8, SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

a)  Statement of financial position

ABSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Term depasits

Premiums and reinsurers” receivable — net
Remsurers’ share of uncarned premnums
Rewm=urers’ share of outstanding claims
Remsurers’ share of ¢laims Incwrred bt not
reported

Dreferred policy acquisition costs
Investments

Dae from insurance operations

Prepaid expenses and other assets

Rigli of wee assets — i

Property and squipmeent

Intangible assers

Lratutony deposit

Acered cominissEon on sEANery deposit

{Lezs): Inter-operabions oliminations
TOTAL ASSETS

31 December 2019

31 December 2018

Insurance e Insurance SR
holders" Total holders® Tatal
ﬂp’f‘rﬂmﬁ bp!fl'l!i"ir_l.lﬁ_ ﬂpﬁ'ﬂtl':lm wm_t_im
SE "0 SR 000
16834 1.577 28411 LA 5077 6 B69
155,288 Timp, 201 255 489 141,136 10037 241,515
E6. 207 . B 207 155 444 - 1455 444
11838 - 21,858 13,139 13,139
5,745 - 8,745 13316 13316
12,273 - 12,273 10467 - 467
D33 - 9033 14,135 - 4,135
147 A %0 TE.284 222,734 1724611 106,201 FTR.E1Z
- 12579 12,979 - 45.TF2 A5 T2
11,173 186 11,359 el M 2 o3 4,377
e bdn 16036 . 3 3
12044 - 12044 14,450 A5
6,304 - 6,34 T.157 = AT
37,500 A7.500 25000 LI ILH]
> 3-.-32_3 3!.3-33 - 2536 2686
514,145 231085  7SS200 647040 285038 933,008
S (12979 (12979) . (45722)  (45.722)
514,145 218076 Td2221 G470 230 436 BET 376
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{A Sawdi Joant Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

8. SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION — (contimied)

aj Statement of financial position — (continwed)
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
share-  Share-
Insnrance Tenbders® Tnsupance bobders®
operations  operations Tatal operations  operations Total
SH "B SE 000
LIABILITIES
Policyholders clamms payable 13,943 - 13,943 7.583 . T.583
Acerued and other liabilities 13,627 - 13,627 52.l 79 - 52,179
Leaze Liahilites 23,703 13,703 ; - -
Femsurers' balances payabie T.311 - T.H11 6,547 - G.547
Uneamed preminms 129678 - I10.67E 287,093 - 287003
Uneamed reimsumnce commHnisssd 401 2401 2543 2543
Cutstanding cleims 38,953 - 3E.053 38370 - 58.370
Claims incurred but nof reported 130,586 - 13k 5846 L51.850 - L51.B0
Premium deficiensy reserves 9,781 0. THl S0RY 5053
Other technical resemes 6,250 - 6,250 6373 . 6,375
Due o sharehokiers” operations 12,979 - 12,970 45,732 - 45,722
Emploves benefits reserve I6HE LLRE A0 a2l
Surphes dismbution pavable 14,5358 - 14,538 14,535 . 14,535
Provision for zakat - 25131 15,131 - 19,761 19,761
Accerued commission weome payabla to
SAMA = 3313 1318 - 2686 2686
524045 245 SRR 404 B, B 1 22447 669,308
(Lezsi: Infer-operations eliminations (12,979 - (12,979) (45,723 - (43,723
TOTAL LIABILITIES 511,900 2459 40455 6Ol,139 22447 623,580
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Share capital 250,000 250 (kMY 250,000 250000
Hatutory reserve - 5,003 5003 - 5,003 5003
(Accumulated lossyRetained earnings - [52,407) (52,407) - 1,708 7,708
T 1] " E 202,596 202,594 - 262,711 202711
Re measnrement reserve of defined benefst
obligation — related to iInsurance operations (B0} - (80D L0749 . 1.079
TOTAL EQUITY { By 202, 5% 201, TG 1079 262711 263,790
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 311,166 231,055 742,211 bl L1H 285,158 HE7.376
COMMITMENTS AND
CONTINGENCIES 10204 - 10,2040 10,200 - 10200




SALAMA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
{A Sawdi Joant Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

8. SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION — (contimied)

by  Statement of income

HREVENLES
Crross premnms wratfen

Reinsarance premimns ceded
- Local
Foreign

Excess of boss expenses
= Local
- Foreign

Mgt premimms writlen

Changes inunsamed premrms, net
Mt premimms earned
Relmsarance commissions

Ciher undererriting mecome

TOTAL REVENUES

W I
EXPENEES
Grogs claims paid
Reinsarers” share of claims paid
Mpt claims paid
Changess in owsianding clams, net

Chabges in chions incurred bt pot repored,

et

et claims ineurred

Change premmm deficiency reserves
Change other technical reserves
Policy acquisiion costs

Ciler underwriting expenses

TOTAL UNDERWRITING COSTS AND

EXPENSES

MET UNDERWRITING INCOME

For the vear ended 31 December

2019 218
Share-  Share-
Insuramce  holiers” [nsuramee Ialdders'
operations operations Tutal OPEriioN:  Operatons Tinal
SR " SR SRy SR 0 SR N0 SR )
503,504 - 503,504 T34 582 T34 082
503 504 - 505 504 T34 9ET T34, 952
(621} - {6y {253) (53]
(48,614) (18.614)  (23,600) {23.600)
(49.305) - (49305 [24,643) {24647
(464) - {464) {55T) (55T
(15,871) - (13871 (11435 (221.438)
(16.335) - (16338  (22995) {22.993)
437 864 - 437,804 GET 344 GE7T, 544
66,134 - G 1354 30765 0TG5
503,508 - 503,998 J27.109 727,109
5,953 - 5,953 GALT 6,317
2,216 - 2,216 ¥ 184 5,184
512,167 = 512187 TIRaL0 T8, 610
500,320 - 501,310 576,790 576,790
(31.848) - GLBI8) (16154 (18,154
4689 4TI - J60 AT 55636 558,636
{14 5465) = (14 54 D516 Q516
(23,110) - (230 10629 10,629
431,516 - 431,516 578,781 578,751
4,600 e 4,694 2770 2779
(116} = {116 2,308 2,398
28,031 - ZR.031 3303] 33,811
1,45 = 21,345 24,785 24,755
485475 - 485 475 G4 674 G642 G674
2,602 - 26,692 03935 45,936



SALAMA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
{A Sawdi Joant Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

25, SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION — (contimiedd)

) Statement of income — (continmed)
For the vear ended 31 December
2019 2018
Share- Share-
Insurance holders Insurance holders
operaiions  operafions Toial Operalions  Opermiions Tuotal
SH "0 SH " SH. (MM SE 000 SR O SE 000
OTHER OFERATING
(EXPENSES)ANCOME
Albowance for doubrful debis s = = {7, 446) - {7490
General and administrative expenses (0 303) (058)  (10d,331) {88.493) (3,404} {Q1.E97)
Tnvestment ineomms 1LETD 1,715 4585 4,444 3103 7.547
Commisseon from Hald b manngy
investments 3784 1,582 5366 . . -
Unrealized | Los ) ghin on iwvestment 3421) 6, THS 3368 1,265 3681 4,956
Reversal of provizsien for bad debis 4604 - 4 hikd - - -
Other incoms 160 LGo1 B. 736 B, 736
TOTAL OTHER OFERA TING ﬂ-l‘:-l,i'n OF ERA JING (E9.955) 2,148 (B0 80T) (31.544) 3390 (78154
(EXPENSES) INCOME
NET (LODES)Y INCOME FOR THE 5 -
VFAR REFORF ZAKAT (G3,2163) 2.148 (54.115) 14,392 3390 17,782
Zakat S (60000 (6,000) (6,000) {6,000)
NET (LD5S) INCOME FOR THE
. 3 3, 4.3 2, 1

YEAR AFTER ZAKAT (6:3,263) 148 (60115 14,302 (26108 11,783
Tramfer to Slareholders 63163 (3.14E) 60115 (12853 2610 (10343

! N 1,439 L4349
OFERATIONS
(Loss) [ Earnbngs per sharve (Expressed b
SAR per shave)
Weightzd average number of shares
outstandig (o thousands) - 23, Z5,04M} 15,0 25,000
Basic and diluted {lo=s) [ carnings per ahare = (2410 {240y 4] .41




SALAMA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
{A Sawdi Joant Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

8. SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION — (contimed)
e} Statement of compreliensive Income

For the vear ended 31 Decembrer

Il_l!l E_I}]E
Slare- Sisfre-
Insurance hodders” Insurance hiolders’

SE B SRCOMH SK 0 SE 0 SE 00 SE 000
War (Los) [/ meome for the year = (6l 115) (6l 115) 143G L343 L1, TE2

operations operations  Total  operations  operations  Towl

Oiher comprelensive inoome

Items that will pot be reclassified to
statement of ineome in subsequent periods
Actearial (losses) | gaim on defined bensfit

obligations (LETS - (1LET® 1079 . LoT%
JOIAL__COMPREMENSIVE (LOSS) |~ pogr  (60.115)  (61,994) 2518 10343 1286l
INCOME FOR THE YEAR




SALAMA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A Saudi Jomnt Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDEID 31 DECEMBER 2019

18 SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION —(continwed)

i}y Statement of cash fows

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
(Loss) / Income befors surplos and zakat

Adjustments for mon-cash bems:
Depreciation of property aixl equipment
Amornzabon of intangible aseets
Amorization of beld to mahmty investmeots
Allowance for doubrful debis

Reverzal of provizion for bad debis
Commizzion from Held to matusity iovestments
Unrealized gain on investments

Realized gain on investmnenis

Emploves beoefit chligations

Changes in operating assets apd liabilities:
Preminms and reinsurers” receivable

Rrinsurers’ share of unearned preminms
Beinsurers’ shere of onistanding ¢laims
Beinsurers” share of claims Icurred bt not
reported

Increase o right o e pssers - pet

Defened policy acgquisibion costs

Prepaid expenses and other assets

Increase in lease Labilgies

Accmied commission from statutory deposit
Policvliolders clalnes payvables

Acerued expenses and other Labilities
Reinsurers' balances payable

Unearned prendums

Unearied reinsurance cominission
Cuistending claims

Claiims incurred Bt ot repaned

Preminm deficiency reserves

Ckher techaical reserve

Accmied comamission incoms payable to SAMA

Zakat pand

Emplovee benefits paid

Met cash flovws (used in) / from operating
activities

For the vear ended 31 December

iR 2018
Shave- Share-
Insurance holders’ Insurance holdars'
operations  operations  Total  operstions opemations  Total
SR 080 SR 00 SR SRO00 SRI000 SR 00
(54,115) (54,115 1,439 16,343 17,782
5,042 5,042 3,148 = 3,148
1,658 1,688 53 - R
; 0 L) 163 116 279
- - - 74% - 7490
(4.604) {4, 604) E
(3,734) (1,581) {5,266) - - -
RR ) | s, THS) (3, 268) (1.265) (3.69]) {4, 55a)
i Led5) (1,138 (2,764}
11 1,110 1,373 4 B
3,503 (62,427} [58,444) [1,567 11,649 23,216
T A4 - T3E41 1346400 - (3406410
(8,719) (8,719} (4,250) (4.250)
4,571 - 4,571 (3.365) - [3.365)
{1,806) (1.,506) (B974) - (8.974)
(26,93 6) (26,93 6) = = =
F 102 - 00 LT - al
13,111 (43} 13018 (9, T04) k1] 9,674}
23,703 - 23,703 - - -
- (642} (642) - (522) {522)
6,50 - 1, 360 [Xe2q) - {3,975
(28.552) - (28,552) 15,232 - 15232
1,264 1,264 (3.355) - 13.335)
(57.415) (57,415) (35.518) - [35.516)
BSH 854 299 - 299
(19.417) (19.417) [2.538] 12,881
(21,304 (21,304} 19,603 - 19,603
4,608 o, 65 2,779 2779
(116) - {116} 2308 - 2,398
- [T (% 1] 322 522
(26,773) (6L,520) (89,293}  (3R594) 11,679 (26,915)
: (630} (630 (4428)  (4,428)
(3.352) - (3,352) (615 - {615)
(30, 125) (63,150) (93.175) {39209 T.251 [31,92E)
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SALAMA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A Saudi Jomnt Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDEID 31 DECEMBER 2019

18, AUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION — {continued)
dl Statement of cash flows — (continued)

For the year ended 31 December

2019 2018
Share- Share-
Insnrance holdeys" Insurance hodders’

operations  eperation Total operalions  operstions Toral

SR00  SR'000  SR'000  SR'000_ SR'000 SR 000
CASHFLOWS FROM INVESTING

ACTIVITIES

Purchases of investments (121 .83%) (4,982} (117.51I1) - {2000000% {200,000
Proceeds from =ale of investments 85,434 I8.986 112420 220300 131,088 35]1,538
Statwtory deposit - {12.500) (12.500) - - -
Placement of term deposits (1850000 (200,000)  (355.800)  (290,757) - {290,757}
Proceeds from 1arm deposits 140,848 200,178 341,026 104213 e.621 264,534
Proceeds from held 10 matcity investmens 04,919 15,215 B154 - - -
Purchase of property and equipment (2627} = (2627} {12,676) % (12,676}
Purchase of intangitie assers (B35) - (535} (B.015) - {3.0L5F
Mot cash flowws from investing actividies 7010 T6,507 A4.817 73,763 30,650 10, 424
CASH FLOWSE FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES

Due to sharcholders' operations (32.743) 31743 - J2LEH (12 B44)

Met cash flows (used in) / from financing sctivifies {32.743) 32743 - 32EHM (32 B44)

et change in cash and cash sguivalents {54, 958) (3,510 (58.458) G741 5. (i T 460
Cash and cash equivalents, begimming of the vear #1,792 5077 ki B0 14342 11 14,403
Coxh nmd cash equivalents, end of the year 16,834 1,577 2EA11 31,791 5,007 £6, 869

. RISK MANAGEMENT

Rizk is mherent in the Company’s activities b is managed throvgh a process of ongoimg identification. measuretient
and monitoring, subjedt 1oorisk Limirs and other confrolz, This process of risk management is crnical to the Company's
continuing paofitabiliy and cach individual witlen the Company is accousable for the sisk exposures relating vo his or
ber responsibilitizs. The Company™s policy 13 to montor busmess nsks through strategic planning process.

Risk management struciure

Board of Directors
The Board of Directors ia responsible for the overall nsk mansgemvent approach and for approving the risk
management strategies and primciples.

Andli committes

The Audit Comumittes 15 eppomted by the Board of Directors, The Audit Commettes assists the Board in carryving out
its responsibilities with respect o assessing the guality and inteprity of fimancial reporting and nsk management, the
audit thereof and the soupdness of the internal contrels of the Company.
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SALAMA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A Saudi Jomnt Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDEID 31 DECEMBER 2019

19, RISK MANAGEMENT — {continued)
Risk management structure — {continned]
The rizks facing the Company and the way these ks wre mitigated by mehnagement are supnarized below,

Tiarnme visk

The sk under an insurance policy is the risk that an msared event will oceur inclnding the wicertainty of the smown
and timing of any resulting claim. The principal risk the Company faces under such policizs 1= that the actual claims
amd benelil paymenis excesd the carying smounl of Insuranse reserves, This is fheenced by the fequercy of clnims,
seventy of claims, actual benefits paid are greater than originally estmated and subseguent developmen: of long-term
claims, Therefore, the objective of the Company & o ensire tat mfficient resources are available to cover claims,

The variability of nisks 1= improved by diversification of risk of less to a large portfolio of insurence policies as a more
diversified portfolio i3 less likely 1o be affected acmss the board by clwnge in any subset of the portfolio, s well as
unexpecicd owicomes. The varnshility of sisks iz abo ipproved by careful =selecton wnd implementation of
underwriting strategy and pusdebines sz well a3 the use of reinsurance arrangements.

Certam portion of remsurance business coded 13 placed o a guots shere basis with retention limits varyug by prodoce
lines Ameuets recoverable from reéinsurers are estimated in 8 manner consistent with the essumphons nsed for
ascertainmg the underlying policy benefits and are presented in the sfatement of financial position as reinswrance
nEsels;

Although the Company has reinsurance arrangements, it is nof relieved of its direct oblzations 1o its policvlslders amd
thus & credit exposure exsis with respect 1o rensumnce ceded, o the exient that amy reinsurer is wnpble o meet s
obligations assumed under such reinsurance arrangements,

The insurance cleim lisbilities are sensitive o various assumpiions mentioned in note 2.

Fregueacy and amounts of claims

The frequency awd amaeni= of claims can be affected by several fvctors soch as food, snovironmemal and sconmmnical,
atmosphenic distwbance and concentration of nsk ste. The Company usderatites mamnky motor and medical nsks.
These are regarded a5 shot-fenm meurance coniracts 85 clapns are nomally advised and sentied within one year of the
msured event taking place. This helps to miggate insurance risk.

Greographical copcentration of rsks
The Compey's insurance risk exposure redating o comirect holders is concenimied in Bingdom of Suwdi Arabis.

The company monitors conceniration of risk primarily by class of business, The major concentration s m motor and
medical Ene of usiness.

Independent actsarial review of claims and clains reserves

In further mitigation of the insurance risk the Company wiilises an independent acuary who performs pericdical
reviews of the Company™s claims modelling and claims projections as well as veribang the closipg pesition claims
reserves are adequate,

Key assumpiion
The principal assumpion underlyving the estimates &= the Company’s estimated ulinmate loss ratio. The ultimate loss
was detenmined wing aciuarial methssds as G o applicable,



SALAMA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A Saudi Jomnt Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDEID 31 DECEMBER 2019

19, RISK MANAGEMENT - (continued)
Insurance risk — [continued)

Senztivities

The company believes that claim Labilities under insurance confract {Gros ontstanding <laim less ransisance share of
outstanding clamm) owstanding at the year-end are adequate; However, these amownts are pot certmn end sciual
pavments may differ from clum labiltizs provided m the finaocial stalements. The insurance cleim babilities are
sensitive To Various asumptions, Semsifivity of loss for the vear before Zakat o change in claim lishilities and IBNE
based on an incresse [ decrease of L0% o outstanding claim reserve and increase / decrease of 15 % in [BNR is given
below for each business segment,

e 2018
SR'090 SROD0
Effect of Effect of Etfect of Effect of
Qurztanding claim net of rensurance 10%% 10% 109 10
increase decrease OICrEase decrease
Motor {1,197 1,197 (2488) 2 458
Bledical (141 1410 (1671 1,671
Oithers (4133 413 (147 347
{3,020 3,020 (4. 5068) 4, 5006
2019 2018
Effect of Effect of Effect of Effect of
IBME 15% 15% 155 15%
increase decrease DCreass decrease
Motor (14.H85) 14, B85 114.261) 14 561
Medical {2.7440) 2746 i(1,560) 1 5640
Others (116} 116 [EE)] g3
{17,747 17,747 (21,214} 21,214

Retmsuranee risk
Similar te other insurence comsanies, in order o minimize financial exposure ansing from brge clamms, the Company,
m the normal course of buziness, enters into agreements with other parties for rminserance purposes.

To minimize its exposure 10 significant psses from reinsurer insclvencies, the Company evaluates the finacid
condition of its rensurers and monitors concentrations of credit sk ansmg frem smmilar geographic regions, activites
of econonie dharaciensic of ke reinsurers, Bensurers are selecied vsing the follvwing parameters and pedelines sa
by the Compeny”s management, The criteris may be summarzed as follows:

1] Mmimum acceptable credit rating by recognized mbmg agencies (e.p. S&P) that = npot bwer than BRE,
b} Beputation of partikular reinsurance companiss,
c) Existing or past business relationship with the reinsarer.

The exception to this rube 15 10 respect of local companies who do oot cery any such credit rating. This, however, 13
limited 1o these comspanies registered and approved by the local Insumnce Regulaor. Fusthermore, the financial
strength and mansgenal and technical expertize a5 well as historical performance, wherever applicable, are thoroughly
reviewed by the Company and marched againsta list of requiremsnts pre-set by the Company”s management before
approving them for exchange of reinswranee busimess.

Reinmeance ceded contracts do not melieve the Company from itz obligations to policyvholders end 08 a seqult the
Company remains liable for the portion of outstending clnims reinsured to the extent that the reinsurer fails to meet the
obligations under the reinsurnce agreements,



SALAMA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A Saudi Jomnt Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDEID 31 DECEMBER 2019

19, RISK MANAGEMENT — (continued)

Regulatory framework visk

Fepulators are primandy mterested in protecting the nghts of the policyholders and monitor theny chosely to ensure that
the Company iz satisfctonly managing affaics for their benefit. At the same tine, the regulators are also interested in
eqpvurzing that the Company mauntains a appropriaste selvency posiion (o meet unfereseen linbilines.

The operations of the Company are also subject to regulatory requirements within the junsdiction It operates. Such
regulations oot only prescrbe approvsl and monitonng of activities, bk alse impose certain rastnetive provisions (=g
capital adequacy) o minimze the nsk of default and insolvency on the part of the insurance companies to mweet
unforessen linbilifies as these arise.

Capital management risk

Capital requirements are set and regulated by the Sawdi Arabian Mooetary Authority, These requirements are put in
place to ensure sufficient solvency margins, Further objectives are set by the Company o maintain healthy capital
et in order o support is business objectives and maximize sharehbedders” value,

The Company manages s capital reguirements by assessing shorifallzs betwess reported and required capital levels on
a regular bazis. Adjstments o current capital levels are made in Light of chaoges in market conditions and risk
claractensiics of the Company®s sctivities. In opder to mamstain or adjust the capital struchee, the Company may
odjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders or 1ssue shares, if required in future. In the opinion of the Board of
Directors, the Company Bas fully complied with the externally imposed capital requirements during the reported

Tinancial vear.

Financial risk

The Company's principal finsncial imtrements are receivanles amang from mserance contracts, due from related
parties, cash and cash equivalents, term deposits, investments, other receivables, ontstanding claims and policy bolder
claims, reinsurance pavable and cerfain ofler assers and liabalities, The main cisks arising from the Company’s
financial instmments are marker mzk, commission mie rizk, foreign currency visk, credit fizk and liquudeny rigk The
board reviews and agrees policies for managing =ach of these nsks and they are summarized below.

Market risk

Market risk i the risk that the value of a Goancial instroment will fluctuate as a result of change: in markel prices,
wietler those changes are cansed either by factors specific (o te individual security, tle izsaer of the securniny, or
factors affecting all serunties taded in the marcet.

The Company 15 sxposed to markst rizk with respect to itz FVIS wvesiments. Market risk = managed by investing in
repaied fomds which maintin investments in diversified portfolios and equity shares and by contimsoes monioring of
developments in eguity markets. In addition, the key factors that affect stock

market movements are mondtored, ineluding anabysis of the operational and finencial performance of investess. A 100
basla poinr increase [ (decrease) o met szt value of these funds can impact sarement of inArance operaiions and
accumulated surphig by SE 259 thousand (201 8: 5K 399 thovsasd) and starement of sharehokder operations by SR 466
thousand (2018: SR 688 thousand ).

Commission rate risk

Comimizsion rate risk anges from the possibility that clsages in cominission rates will affect funure profitability or the
fair vahees of financial instrumwents. The Company i3 expesed 1o comunession rate risk on itz held o maomrity
mvestments and term depasits.

The Company iz subject o commission rete fair valoe nsk on it fixed rate Murabaha deposits classified sz term
depositz i the stalement of finascial positicn, The company does nof account for fixed commiszion rale instnamnent as
held for trading or as FVIS investment. Accordingly. there s no impact on the moome or equity of reasopably possibie
change in commission rate
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SALAMA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A Saudi Jomnt Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDEID 31 DECEMBER 2019

19, RISK MANAGEMENT - {continued)
Commizsion e risk- (continued)

The Company is egquired 10 maintain # resiricted deposit in sccordanee with insurance regulations in Saudi Arabia on
which the Compeny does not eam asy comumission. MMamagement mits commission rate nsk of other finemciad
mstrmmenis by monitonng chaoges n commission mies o the correnvies in which i fimancial mstreoenis are
denominated,

Tusurnme Oiperadioms
Details of materities of the major clazses of commission bearing securities for meurance operations as at 31 December
2002 and 2018 are as follows:

019
SR "00a
Less than 1105 over 5
1 yenr yeary years fotal
Investments held to mamirgy (note §) 111.524 10,p0a - 121,524
p111,524 10, (Wb - 121,524
2018
1ws Ve S
_L:ess tham 1 vear Years veats Total
Investments held o matungy (nofe 8} 114042 8627 LG, Ol 131,669
|14 047 RG6Z7 | 0,00l [32 6650

The mangrities of deposis have been detenmined on the basiz of the renminmg pericd, a1 the reporting date, 1o the
contraciunl maruerity dage.

The effective interest rates for the comimizsion bearing financial istromens were & follows:

209 2018

sand Kival denomisated financial assets 2.15% 2.15%

The followmg table demonstrates the sensitvity of statement of insumnce operations to reesonably possible chanpes in
mterest mies, with all other vamables held constant.

ne 20018
ER"D SE 0
Effect on profit Effect on profst

Sauds Rivals:
Inecrease (i imrerest rares by 100 basis poinrs 2,905 I, 695
Decrease in imteTest rates by 100 basis points (2905 [ 1.62E)



SALAMA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A Saudi Jomnt Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDEID 31 DECEMBER 2019

19, RISK MANAGEMENT - {continued)
Financial risk — (continmed)
Comimizaon rate risk — (comtineed )

Detmk of matunbies of the major classes of commussion bearmg secunties for sharcholders” operations as at 31
December 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

Shareholder Operations

g
SR "yl
Less than lin s over 5
1 vear VEArs Vears Tt
Investments held o mabonty (note 8) 8320 18448 - 26,768
B30 18448 - 2i, 768
201E
SR (MY
Less than 1 L s over 5 Toal
b Years Jed
Investments held o mahirgy (note 8} 14,245 21143 - 35, 488
14,245 21243 - 35 46k

The mamrities of deposits have been determined on the basiz of the remaining pericd, at the reparting date, to the
contractual meturity date. The effsctive interest rates for the commission bearng finencml instuments were &s
Tollovws:

e 2R

Foreign cwrrency denominated financial assets L64% L.52%%

The followimg table demonstrares the sensitmviry of statement of insurance spertions fo reazonably possible clanges in
comniisson mies with all other vanahlzs held canstant

2009 208
SH000 SHR000
Effect om profit  Effect oo profi

Saud Rivaks:
Ineresse 0 comimssion ks by 100 bagis polnts 1,192 1,138
Decrease in cominission rates W 100 basis points (1,192} (1135

Currency risk

Currency rizk is the risk that the valve of a financial instroment will fluchste diee o changes in foreign exchange rates,
Management believes that ther &5 minimal sk of losses due to exchange rate fluctuations as the insurance cperations
aisd sharebobers” operations primanly deal in Sadi Rivals asd in U5 Dollar which & pegged o Saudi Rivals,

Crelil visk

Credit risk is the sk thar obe party to & financial instrumess will fail 1o discharge an obligation and cause the other
party to mewr & financial loss. All of the Company’s underwriting activiies are carried ont 10 Saudi Arabia, Far all
classes of financial assers held by the Company, the maximim credit fisk exposnute © the Company s the camving
value a5 dischosed in the financial sratements at the reporiing date,
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(A Saudi Jomnt Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)
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9. RISK MANAGEMENT — (confimued)
Credif risk — (continwed }

The Company seeks to mit its credic risk with respect o costomers by following the credit control policy and
monioneg catstanding receivables on an ongeing basiz m order to redoce the Company’s exposure to bad debts.
Management estunates specific inpairment provision on 8 case by case basis, In additeon to specific provisions, the
Company alse makes an additional porfolie provision, estimated oo & collective basis, based on the ageing profile of
the overdue premivms receivele. The Company seeks to liodt s credit risk with respect to other counterpartiss by
placiug deposits with repuinble banks,

Reinsurance s ploced with counterparfies that have a good credit rafing and concentration of nsk s avoided by
Tollowing poBey guideliness in réspect of counterpartics” limEs that are 221 each year by the board of divsctors and are
subject to regular reviews. At each reporing dete, mansgement performs an essessment of credibwornthiness of
reimsurers and wpdates the reinsurance purchase sirategy. acertaining suitable allowancs for impainvent,

Therable below shows the imaximmin exposure foocredit risk for the components of the statement of financial position:

2019 2018

SR’ 000

Insurance” Operations

Cash and cask equivalents 26,834 BL,792
Term deposiis 155,288 141,136
Premiums receivablie, net £330 153,039
Held to maturiry invesonents 121,524 132 a4
Rzimsurance receivables, net 1,887 2404
Orther receivables 42,064 31,558
Reinsurers’ share of ontstending clzims 21,014 23,783
453,935 566,381
e 20HE

Shareholders® Operations SR 000
Cash and cash squrvmlents LE77 5077
Tenm deposit 100,201 L0379
Other receivables 186 a3
Held to sty invegtmwents 26,768 35 448
128,732 141,037

Liquidity risk

Liquadiry rizk 15 the risk that the Company will nof be able to meer iz commitments aszociated with financial liabilities
when they fall due.

Liguadity reguirements are monitored oo momhly basis and mansgement ensures that sufficient Bquid finds are
avalable fo meet any commutments as they arise.

All of the Company’s financial assets and fnsmcial Liabilities are expectad o be realised and zetled, respecively
withm 12 months from the reportiog date, except for statutory depost, which has no ferm (see note 14}, and held to
matuity asgsts, which are expected to be beld undil their maturitizs 25 mentioped In comnussion rate nek disclosure
above, All financial Labilities are non-inferest bearing.



SALAMA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A Saudi Jomnt Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDEID 31 DECEMBER 2019

M AMALGAMATION OF SHAREAOLDERS AND INSURANCE OPERATIONS

Ceriam of ihe comparstive lgures bave been reclassified and regrouped 1o conform fo ile o the coment ye
presenfation. These changes as summarized below, were mainly 1o confonm wits the SAMA requirements:

*  Asdiscmsed in note T o these fivancial statements, previovsly statemens of financial position, starement of
income, and statemest of cash Hows were presented separately for insermoce operations and sharebelders
operatim which are combined togetber o presenl one Company level salzment of {mancml postion,
statement of income and statement of cash ows,

«  The amountz “dus to / frem™ sharchobders and insweance opeeationa which peevionsly reporicd separately in
the respective statement of financial peaition, are now eliminated (refer note 28 {a)).

=  Zhare of msurance operations surpluz split in the ratio of 9000 bepween sharebolders and insurance
operatiors and presented separately 13 now presented as an expense in statement of iIncome {refer nole 28 (b))

Al. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

The spread of nevel coroosyies (COVID-19) sewss multiple geographics was confinmed o carly 2020, cansing
disruptions to businesses and sconomic activitizs. The Company considers thes cuthreak to be a pon-adjustine post
balance sheel event. Al thiz eary stage, the Company is in the process of assessmg any potential impact. The
management and ileose charged with gpovemance will comtiome 1o mwonsior the =ituation and secordingly update all
stakeholders as soon & more information §s available. Changes in circumstances may require enhanced disclosures or

recognition of adjstments in the condensed inferim financil starements of the Company of the subsequent pericds in
the financial year 20240,

AL COMPARATIVE FIGURES
Certain of the prier vear figeres have been reclassified to conform fo cirrent vear presentation.

AL APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The finaocial swarments bave been approved by the Board of Direciors on 7 Sha'aben 1241 H, corresponding to 3|
hlarch 2020,
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